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Financial Highlights
B RE

Revenue of the Group increased by 74.2% or RMB873.4 million to
RMB2,049.8 million for the Reporting Period (2019: RMB1,176.4
million), among which revenue from sales of Human Albumin
Solution increased by approximately RMB1,040.8 million, mainly
benefited from the increase in sales volume.

Gross profit of the Group increased by RMB54.0 million to
RMB273.8 million for the Reporting Period (2019: RMB219.8
million), while gross profit margin decreased from 18.7% in 2019 to
13.4% for the Reporting Period. The increase in gross profit was in
line with the increase of the revenue.

Net profit of the Group increased by 400.4% to RMB118.1 million
for the Reporting Period (2019: RMB23.6 million), primarily due
to the increase in gross profit of the Group and the large decrease
in selling and distribution expenses, administrative expenses and
financial cost.

During the Reporting Period, net profit attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to RMB118.1 million (2019: net profit RMB23.6
million), representing an increase in net profit by RMB94.5 million.

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December

2020 amounted to RMB0.070 (2019: RMB0.014).

The Board resolved not to declare any final dividend for the
Reporting Period (2019: Nil).

MEBAN  AEBRZEERETI2% KA RE
873.4HEBILEARK2,049.8HET(2019%F ¢
ARE117648&T) - AP AMBES TR
HEWSEROARE10408FET  TEF
ERHEEEMEER -

WERA - AEBEEMEMARESA08ETLE
AR#273.8EEL(2019%F : AR¥E2198HE
JL)  EFEAIE2019F #918.7 %8 > & 5 45 A
MEI13.4% - EFEIG B 25 I8 INEREF T —
@( o

RERE A - AREBAEFIEN400.4% EARE
11818 87T(2019% : AR®236B&ETL) * *
ZRARNEBEEFIZINARIEE KA HH

32 TTHRBA SRR TSR AN K BRIRL A FTER

WMEPAR - ARREBEARELFINAARE
118 1B &L(20194F MR AR 2368 &
JC)  MEFPIE AR SHE T

HZE2020F12A31HIEFE - GREARREE
BF A ARE0.0707T(20194F : AR¥0.014
JT) °

EXgRF T MmE NS IREM RIS (2019
FoE)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2016%F 20174 20184 20194 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETFIT ARETT ARBTRT ARBTIT AR%®TR
(Restated)
(gEH)
Operating results REEE
Revenue Uz 858,894 806,723 952,957 1,176,409 2,049,803
Gross profit e 104,568 93,533 221,025 219,847 273,826
Profit/(loss) before tax BEALEA(E8) 25,566 (194,868)  (272,015) 42,955 135,955
Profit/(loss) for the year FRHF(EBEB) 18,337 (185,897)  (280,615) 23,550 118,137
Profit/(loss) attributable to ARAREB AEMN
owners of the Company w L (E18) 19,367 (185,896)  (280,614) 23,552 118,137
Profitability 27
Gross margin FEF= 12.2% 11.6% 23.2% 18.7% 13.4%
Net profit/(loss) margin &R (58 = 2.1% (23.0%) (29.4%) 2% 5.8%
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Financial Highlights Bf7&#EE

Revenue Profit/(loss) Attributable to
6 Owners of the Company
AATEEAEEER (58)
RMB'000 ,
_ RMB'000
1q
AR 2,049,803 AR
2,100,000 ~ s 150,000 [~ 118,137
1,800,000 - 100,000 -
1,500,000 [ 50,000 19,367 23,552
1,200,000 1,176,409 0 ' ' ' '
T 4 952,957 -50,000 [~
900,000 1228894 806,723 -100,000 |-
600,000 - -150,000 [~
300,000 F -200,000 - (185,896)
-250,000 -
O 1 1 1 1 ) L
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 300,000 (280,614)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
20164 20174 20184 20194 20205
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFIT AREFTT ARETRT ARETT ARET:R
(Restated)
(5&=%))
Financial position BRI
Total assets BEE 787,727 819,219 611,762 832,344 1,252,053
Total equity B 457,275 272,730 22,723 46,292 164,429
Total liabilities BEE 330,452 546,489 589,039 786,052 1,087,624
Equity attributable to owners ZRATHEH A
of the Company FEAE R 458,179 273,635 23,629 47,200 165,337
Cash and cash equivalents* ¥4 R & @Y+ 154,079 75,651 80,343 224,756 143,765
* As stated in the statement of cash flows * IR &R E R AT
Total Assets Equity attributable to owners
HEE of the Company
RATEEAELER
RMB'000 RMB’000
AREEF T AREF T
1,500,000 [~ 500,000 358 179
1,252,053
1,200,000 |- 400,000 -
900,000 787,727 819,219 832,344 300,000 273,635
611,762
600,000 - 200,000 - 165,337
300,000 100,000 - 47,200
23,629
O 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 1
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to the
Shareholders for their attention and support to the Group, and present
the report of the Group for the Reporting Period.

Affected by the COVID-19 epidemic in 2020, the pharmaceutical industry
has met new opportunities and challenges. Due to the epidemic, the
pharmaceutical industry continues to be sought after by the investment
boom, and the demand for related pharmaceutical products has also
been enlarged. In 2020, medical industry has also ushered in a new round
of upsurge in China. At the same time, the epidemic has also raised
people’s awareness of their own health, which has increased the demand
for medicine to a certain extent, and the growth rate of the entire
pharmaceutical industry has continued to be higher than that of domestic
GDP.

During the Reporting Period, the human albumin batch release amounted
throughout the year was 58.9 million vials, an increase of 10.2%
compared to last year, in which the imported human albumin was 37.7
million vials and accounted for 64.0%, an increase of 17.1% compared
to last year, and the domestic production was 21.2 million vials and
accounted for 36.0%, almost the same as the last year. Mainly due to the
epidemic, the working hours of the plasma station at the beginning of
the year were delayed, which led to a decrease in the amount of plasma
collection and affected the batches of domestic albumin issued in the
subsequent quarters. Due to the increase in demand for pharmaceutical
products caused by the epidemic, the volume of imported human albumin
continued to increase.

On the basis of the “Two-Invoice System” policy, the Company further
adjusted and optimized the sales channels for products to enter the
terminal market compared with last year. In the past year, our product
marketing network has covered large-scale hospitals in major cities across
the country, and has also penetrated into hospitals in cities and second-
and third-tier cities cooperated with various distributors and promoters.
In the history of the development of blood products, market and policy
changes have had a greater impact on the entire industry in the short
term, but after the sales channels adjustment and Integration in the
previous two years, the Group enlarged the business scale and improved
its profitability.

6 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Chairman’s Statement EfEIRE

Throughout the Reporting Period, revenue of Human Albumin Solution
stood at RMB1,889.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
122.7% or RMB1,040.8 million as compared to 2019. The gross profit
of Human Albumin Solution realized RMB227.7 million, representing an
increase of approximately 202.8% or RMB152.5 million as compared to
2019.

With the smooth expansion of production capacity of human albumin
suppliers, the Group’s continuous reduction of inventory and the
enhancement of its sales and distribution capabilities, the purchase
volume in 2020 has significantly increased. During the Reporting Period,
Sinco distributed a total of about 7.1 million vials of human albumin
solution, a significant year-on-year increase of 135.0%. At the same time,
on the premise that market demand has picked up and terminal prices
have stabilized, the supply price of the Group’s human albumin products
has also remained stable throughout the year. In 2021, the Group will
further expand its market share in accordance with market conditions on
the basis of the smooth establishment of sales channels and a substantial
rebound in sales volume to further increase sales scale.

With the completion of reshaping the Group’s business model and
bettering its independent sales network, the Group managed to gradually
bring down the cost of channel development and sales expense and
significantly improve the overall profitability. As of 31 December 2020,
the Group recorded a net profit of approximately RMB118.1 million.
The successful transformation of the business system has laid a good
foundation for the Group’s operations in 2021.

REEFZEHAN - AMMBERFFTREEASARE
1,889.0A &7t * L2019 RHAREE,040.85
BT HIE4122.7% - AMMAZEA TS RERNHET
AREE227. 7EETT © HHE2019FE K 49202.8% 5k A
R¥15258&7T °

EAMBEQHERIBEFERERS  NEBBEHEL
EFARIRAB B EERRENNEST - 202060
HIRBEREIRA - MEHANERE L DEANA
ERESRN7TAEER  RLEARRER135.0% ° [
By - BTSSR REE A RKIRERBEBNAIRET - &
SEANBELERNEEERODEEFRIFET -
fE20214F « ANEE BB HERBISAERBERH
EE2XNBEFAMER - E—TREMSBEIERAT
BDEE - DUE— PR ERE o

BEAEBMEGEAESETHAARA THERBENEZ
HRE - AEEERBERFEE BB LR AZEH
B EBRE AT HRIBIRA - BLE2020F12A31
B REBESSAFNOARBISIEET - £7588
AR RINER AAREBE2021FELET T RN
EAE o
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Chairman’s Statement EfEIRE

During the year of the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group
continued to promote the adjustment of sales policies and further
optimization measures, and continued to penetrate and develop new
terminal hospitals. With the stable development of terminal market, the
Company’s adaptability to policy adjustments and market changes in
the pharmaceutical industry has been greatly increased. While actively
building the internal system of the Group, it is also developing the
management and training of talents. Through this series of measures, the
sales team of the Company’s products has been continuously improved.
The Company will Also continue to strengthen the construction of internal
control and risk management systems, pay close attention to corporate
social responsibility, and put corporate social responsibility into practice
under group control. Based on the good cooperation with Octapharma
and according to Octapharma’s forecast and production plan, the supply
of human albumin products to the Chinese market will continuously
be increased in 2021. It is believed that the Group’s sales performance
in 2021 will create a new high in benefits of the stable and continuous
cooperation between the Group and its suppliers.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our
Shareholders, customers and partners for their trust and support during
the Group's difficult time, and all the employees of the Group for their
hard work and contribution. The Group will seize the market opportunities
brought by the upgrade and transformation of the pharmaceutical
industry and continuously improve its competitiveness, in an effort to
maximize value for the Shareholders, customers and other stakeholders.

Huang Xiangbin
Chairman
31 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENW&k D

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group recorded revenue of RMB2,049.8 million for the Reporting

Period, representing an increase of RMB873.4 million, or 74.2% as
compared to RMB1,176.4 million in 2019, which could be further
analysed as follows:

B 7 1 8

Wz
REBERBEANGS K ARE2,049.888T © &
2019F M AR, 17648 BB MARKES7348E
TC  EIE74.2% - AIE—FS DT ¢

2020 2019
2020 20194

RMB million % of revenue RMB million % of revenue
ARBEET bt AREBET Wbt

(Audited) (Audited)

(RER) (&&EZ)
Human Albumin Solution AMBEHEFR 1) 1,889.0 92.2 848.2 72.1
Antibiotics MEX 2) 160.8 7.8 326.0 27.7
Other products HAitEmR 3) - - 22 0.2
Total = 2,049.8 100.0 1,176.4 100.0
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Throughout the Reporting Period, revenue of human albumin solution stood
at RMB1,889.0 million, representing an increase of approximately 122.7% or
RMB1,040.8 million as compared with 2019. Such increase in revenue was
caused by the increase in the supply volume and the sales volume of human
albumin.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from sales of antibiotics decreased
by RMB165.2 million as compared with 2019. The decrease was mainly
caused by the outbreak of the coronavirus COVID-19 in the beginning of
the year 2020 which caused the drop in the number of hospital inpatients
as a result the usage of antibiotics decreased correspondingly, and with the
implementation of the drug volume-based purchasing policy the sale volume
in some provinces declined.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 [Z 558 & 247

Cost of sales

The Group recorded cost of sales of RMB1,776.0 million for the Reporting
Period, representing an increase of RMB819.4 million, or 85.7% as
compared with RMB956.6 million in 2019, which was generally in line
with the increase in sales.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded gross profit of
RMB273.8 million, representing an increase of RMB54.0 million as
compared with RMB219.8 million in 2019, in which the gross profit of the
human albumin increased by RMB152.5 million and was partially offset
by the decrease of the gross profit of the antibiotics by RMB98.5 million.
The gross profit margin decreased from 18.7% in 2019 to 13.4% for the
Reporting Period. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to
the large increase of sales of human albumin which in generally has lower
profit margin than the antibiotics.

Other income and gains

During the Reporting Period, other income and gains of the Group
amounted to RMB13.7 million, representing a decrease of RMB1.4 million
as compared with 2019, which was mainly caused by the decrease of
delivery service income.

Selling and distribution expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses
amounted to approximately RMB89.8 million, representing a decrease of
RMB24.7 million as compared with the 2019. The decrease was mainly
due to the decrease of marketing promotion expenses which was in line
with the decrease in sales of the antibiotics.

Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded administrative
expenses of RMB40.6 million, which was similar to that of the 2019. The
administrative expenses mainly included staff cost of RMB8.9 million,
intermediary service fees of RMB9.2 million, tax charges of RMB5.0
million, depreciation and amortization cost of RMB6.7 million and other
miscellaneous expenses.

Other expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other expenses of
RMB12.7 million, representing an increase of RMB2.4 million as compared
with the 2019, which was mainly due to the increase in foreign exchange
loss.

SHERA
AEBRREHRNSEESHEXAIARKE1,776.08 8
TC * B2019F M A R#E956.6 & BT MMARES19.4

e —
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 [E 5758 & 247

Finance costs

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded finance costs of RMB8.8
million, representing a decrease of RMB11.2 million as compared with
2019, which was mainly due to the repayment of the other interest-
bearing loans by the Group in January 2020 and accordingly the relevant
interest expense decreased.

Income tax expense

During the Reporting Period, the income tax expenses decreased by
RMB1.6 million or 8.2% to RMB17.8 million as compared with 2019. The
decrease was mainly due to utilisation of tax losses from previous periods.

Profit for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded the net profit of
RMB118.1 million, which increased by RMB94.5 million as compared with
RMB23.6 million in 2019.

Inventories

Inventory balances amounted to RMB242.6 million as of 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019: RMB259.3 million), representing a decrease of
RMB16.7 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2019. Such
decrease was due to the decrease in the inventory balance of human
albumin solution.

Due to the decrease of the inventory and adjustment of sales channels,

the Group's average inventory turnover days decreased by 38 days from
90 days in 2019 to 52 days for the Reporting Period.

1 2 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 [Z 558 & 247

Trade and bills receivables

The balance of trade receivables amounted to RMB578.7 million as of 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: RMB26.0 million). The main reason
for the increase of RMB552.7 million as compared with the year-end
balance of 2019 was that most of trade receivables were covered by letter
of credit issued by the customers and not yet past due which led to an
increase in the balance of trade receivables.

The balance of bills receivables as of 31 December 2020 was nil (31
December 2019: RMB4.7 million).

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

As of 31 December 2020, the current portion of prepayments, other
receivables and other asset amounted to RMB40.7 million (31 December
2019: RMB109.2 million), representing a decrease of RMB68.5 million as
compared with the year-end balance of 2019. The decrease was mainly
caused by the drop of prepayment of deposits for issuance of letter of
credit by RMB42.6 million and valued-added tax recoverable by RMB20.8
million.

Trade payables

As of 31 December 2020, trade payables amounted to RMB700.3 million
(31 December 2019: RMB300.5 million), representing an increase of
RMB399.8 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2019,
which was caused by the increase of payables for the purchase of Human
Albumin Solution.

Other payables and accruals

As of 31 December 2020, other payables and accruals amounted to
RMB161.9 million (31 December 2019: RMB116.9 million), representing
an increase of RMB45.0 million as compared with the year-end balance of
2019. The increase was mainly due to the increase of payables in relation
to the import agent contract by RMB54.7 million. The increase was
partially offset by the decrease of (i) the payables in relation to marketing,
promotion and consulting services by RMB12.7 million; and (ii) the interest
payable on other interest-bearing loans by RMB23.2 million.

g o RINFIEREWEE
HZE2020F12A318 - BHRKRFEBRBAAR
#5787 B ETL(2019512 8318 : ARK260EE
TC) C BR019FMFE BHEEIEIMARKSS27THEE
T EBRARAKBLE SRR KBEBREATFHAN A
HMABENEAERRIM - 8 S EIGIEHEIG
hne

HE2020F12A318 » BUREEHTEAZ(2019F12
A31H : ARE4TEETT) ©

FENFIE - HttEEWREREMEE
#HE2020F12A31H » B E - EMEBGIER
HihEEMRHRS AAREA40.7E8ET(2019F12
A318 : ARKE109.2BEL)  R2019FMF A H#%
ERIOARBESSEET - R EEARAMLER
FHRESTENRIBERD AREA2 68 B kY 1E
BEFREERERDARK208E8T -

B S EARIE

HZE2020F12A310  BZENARIEAARET00.3
BET(201912A318 : ARKE3005HE7T) &
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Hib S FRIE R ESTRIE

HE2020F 124318 - EMENKIERETRIEE
AR®161.968T(2019F12A31H « AR¥116.9
BEL)  BR019FMF L BRBEIEMARKE45.08
BT ZILBEETERHNHEEAORES L MBI E
B IMARBSATEEIT o AR A () EE
8 - R KA ARG EENENRERD ARE12.7
BEL RiEMETEERNOEMRNFERD ARKE
23. 2B B TTATHE ©
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Other payables and accruals (non-current portion)

As of 31 December 2020, non-current portion of other payables
amounted to RMB93.4 million (31 December 2019: RMB130.1 million),
representing a decrease of RMB36.7 million as compared with the year-
end balance of 2019. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease of
payables in relation to the import agent contracts by RMB130.1 million
which was partially offset by the increase in payables in relation to the
long-term deposits received from distributors.

Borrowings
As of 31 December 2020, the Group has borrowings of RMB81.0 million
in total, with details set out below:

H b FOE R EFTROE GEREIE D)

HE2020F12 8318 » HMEMNFIBERIE R
DAEANRBIZAFEL(2019F12A8318  ARK
1301 EBT)  R2019FMF & BRER D AR
36.7HET - TERHNEEORES QBB EN
IR ARE130.1BETT - WA IH HEE B
R RAVRE AR BN FRIBIE NATIRSY -

(EEN
HZE2020F12A31H » AEBMNERETAEARE
81.08 8T ' #FIBJIRIT ¢

2020 2019
20205 2019%F
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBF T AREBFT
(Audited) (Audited)
(RERZ) (B&E%)
Current: mE :

Interest-bearing bank loans FHERITER 77,986 47,484
Interest-bearing other borrowings FTEEAMER - 140,000

Non-Current: IERE
Interest-bearing bank loans ETEIRITER 3,042 -
Total CE 81,028 187,484

The other interest-bearing loans referred to above relate to a loan
agreement entered into on 23 April 2018 (as supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 27 March 2019) (collectively, the “Loan
Agreement”) among the Company as the borrower, Mr. Gui Guoping
("Mr. Gui") as the lender, Risun as the chargor and Mr. Huang Xiangbin
as the guarantor for a loan of RMB140.0 million (the “Loan”) with
an interest rate of 13.2% per annum. The Company arranged for the
repayment of the Loan together with relevant interest amounts under the
Loan Agreement on 3 January 2020. In such connection, Mr. Gui released
the 1,049,990,000 Shares that were charged and placed in a custodian
account pursuant to the Loan Agreement and the guarantee provided by
Mr. Huang Xiangbin in connection with the Loan on 11 March 2020. For
more details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 23
April 2018, 27 March 2019, 9 April 2019 and 3 January 2020.
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Gearing ratio BBtk %
At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group’s gearing ratio was RHREER  NEBNA B RFEWNT -
calculated as follows:

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AREFT

(Audited) (Restated)

(RERZ) (& 5751))

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings sTRRITREMERK 81,028 187,484
Trade payables B SN FRIA 700,320 300,466
Other payables and accruals A B FUE K AT A 255,368 246,983
Lease liabilities HERE 1,103 1,176
Tax payables FERTTS IR 21,999 11,361
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o Re KBS EEY (143,765) (219,755)
Less: Pledged bank balances A BRI TSR = (5,001)
Net debt®@ BEF5e 916,053 522,714
Equity B 164,429 46,292
Equity and net debt® RN aEFEe 1,080,482 569,006
Gearing ratio@® B {E L K@ 84.8% 91.9%

Liquidity and capital resources

The following table sets out a condensed summary of the Group’s

RBEEREARKIR

TERAAEENRBSHANGERASRERGHRE

consolidated statement of cash flows during the Reporting Period: 2

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
P sk AR¥T T ARBFIT
(Audited) (Restated)
(RERZ) (gE5)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities SIS (FTAR)IEESFE 1) 137,300 (9,548)
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities SESEERE(FA)RESERE  2) (46,842) (2,545)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities BEESS,(FTR)BEFE  3) (169,875) 156,443

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReRBESEED
equivalents S G )58 (79,417) 144,350
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INEFE R B) 2R ER (1,574) 63
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#IR 4 RIRESZEEY 4) 224,756 80,343
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRESRIRESEEY 4) 143,765 224,756
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Notes
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Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash inflow from operating
activities amounted to approximately RMB137.3 million (for the year 2019:
net cash outflow of RMB9.5 million), which was mainly due to the increase
in cash from sales and increase in deposits receivable from distributors during
the Reporting Period as compared with the corresponding period of prior
year.

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group's net cash outflow from investing
activities amounted to approximately RMB46.8 million (for the year 2019:
net cash outflow of RMB2.5 million), which was mainly due to the significant
capital expenditure on the addition of leasehold land.

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash outflow from financing
activities amounted to approximately RMB169.9 million (for the year 2019:
net cash inflow of RMB156.4 million), which mainly include (i) repayment
of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of RMB226.3 million; (ii)
payment of interests of RMB6.8 million and (iii) net payment of other payables
and accruals of RMB98.6 million in relation to import agency contracts. The
cash outflow was partially offset by (i) net proceeds from bank and other
loans of RMB120.3 million and(ii) proceeds from deposits of issuance of
letters of credit of RMB42.6 million.

The following table sets out the Group's cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the Reporting Period:

Hrit

REEBME (PR RESFE

RSN - AEELSEZBMBRSANFEOA
AR¥13738E0(2019%F : Be R FEARKIS
BEL)  ETERHANREHNEEMNEES RIUELH
B ER B S E R FRIAEINATER

BRBRBAE (FA)RLIFE

RIERR - AEEREETHMBES R FENA
ARKE46.8EET(2019F « REMLFEARK25
BEL)  TEHARAERETMMELERNEARMS
FTEK »

REEBFE, (R RLFE

RIEHAR - AEEREESMEES R FENR
ARB169.9BEL(2019F  BERAFBARE
156488 7T)  FEBIE)EETSERITREMERA
R#2263E8T: (WFMENRARKSEETL &
(i) B3 QIR A 49 AE B A E At B A OB K BB R R F
BMARKISEEHET - BeRI5H H T SIEATIK
o (OVBTTREMERAEREFEARKI120388
TL RGN ERENTEREREARKN6EEH
5o

TRIFIAEERHERRNRE LIRS EEY

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

(Audited) (Audited)

(BER) (Ke®:z)

Denominated in RMB RAREEHE 102,572 211,624
Denominated in US$ ASETTEHE 37,263 12,770
Denominated in HK$ LABTTEHE 3,835 301
Denominated in S$ VAT NS TR E 55 61
Denominated in C$ g RTEtHE 40 -
143,765 224,756

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



Management Discussion and Analysis &2 [Z 558 & 247

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies. Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash and
cash equivalent are held in major financial institutions located in Mainland
China. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and the senior management of the Company reviews and
assesses the creditworthiness of the Group’s existing customers on an
ongoing basis. To manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors its exposure
to a shortage of funds by considering the maturity of both its financial
liabilities and financial assets and projected cash flows from operations.
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group is mainly denominated in RMB.

Foreign currency risk
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except
for certain items below:

Certain bank balances are denominated in US$, HK$, S$ and C$; and
Purchase of products from overseas suppliers and relevant trade payables
are denominated in US$.

The Group manages the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies by
foreign currency forward and option contracts, and does not enter into
any hedging transactions.

Capital expenditure
The following table sets out the Group’s capital expenditure for the
periods indicated:

BER R

AEBERTEFRBR LRNBENP T ERRE -
AEBRRBNRE KRS EEMERR T EAMLA
TESREE - AEEBOIRE HARKE ) EUFIR
HEFFEURIES] - BEAR RS RE R ERER R
AEERBEFPHNEE - REERDERER  £%
EFEEEReRBENEREENDIH AN LIEFTE
LHREMEFESERAR - ARENREIREE
BYEEUARKEE -

HMNE R\ B
AEEABIEERBBEAAREE  ETHET
BEE BRI

ETRITAMIUASTT BT~ FIETT R INERTTE
8 RAEIMLERE B Em MR E S BN FRIE
RITTETE -

AEBEBINEER RS NERINEBEND -
WERT AR AEHR S -

BRI
TREINAKERARHBENEARFAX -

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

(Audited) (Audited)

(FEER) (feE%)

Purchase of items of property, plant and equipment B E¥E¥ - HELREER 372 555
Addition of leasehold land REHE T 49,114 -
49,486 555
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Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as of 31 December 2020.

Pledge of assets
As of 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the Group’s pledged
assets were set out as follows:

ZREE
HZE2020F12A31H  AEBBMETMNERSAE

& -

EEIKH
B E2020F12A31H » AEBEEBKFEENREE
YT -

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
20205 2019%F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETFTT
(Audited) (Restated)
(RREX) (fe=51)
For obtaining bank and other borrowings FARNESRITREMER
- Buildings —gF 70,296 72,755
- Inventories —FE 241,577 224,916
For issuance of letters of credit and billings RARFERE AR ESR
- Bank balances —IRITHERR = 5,001

Dividend
The Directors resolved not to declare any final dividend for the Reporting
Period (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

With extensive experience in the distribution of pharmaceutical imports,
the Group provides comprehensive MPCM services for small and medium-
sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers. Meanwhile, the Group
is the only MPCM services provider for imported blood products in the
PRC, leveraging our quality product portfolio that focuses on blood
products and nationwide marketing and promotion network. The Group’s
existing product portfolio encompasses many quality products produced
by small and medium-sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers,
covering multiple therapeutic areas such as anti-infective drugs, and blood
products. Included in such products are blood products which are in short
supply in the Chinese market and prescription drugs which can meet the
high demand for high-quality drugs with excellent clinical results among
medical institutions and patients.
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Core Products

Human Albumin Solution

Dating back to the early 1940s, blood products have undergone
decades of fast development. Such products have grown from
Human Albumin at the very beginning to the current 20-plus
categories in three series, encompassing such sub-categories as
Human Albumin, immune globulin and blood coagulation factors.
Given the approval granted to new indications and an improved rate
of diagnosis, the Plasma Protein Therapeutics Association (PPTA)
predicts that the market demand for blood products will retain a
high-speed growth around the globe. In these two years, as many
new plasma collection stations have been put into service, the
amount of plasma collection increases every year and production
capacity of domestic manufacturers has also increased rapidly. As
the largest sales category in the market of blood products in the
PRC, Human Albumin is the only kind of blood product allowed to
be imported at present, and its lot release of imported and domestic
categories maintains a rapid growth every year. In 2020, the annual
batch release amounted to 58.9 million vials (2019: 53.4 million
vials), among which the percentages of imported and domestic
categories were 64.0% and 36.0% respectively. Manufactured by
Octapharma, a global leading manufacturer of blood products, and
included as a Category B product in the National Reimbursement
Drug List (NRDL), the Human Albumin Solution operated by the
Group is used to remedy the shock caused by hypovolemia, remove
edema and poisonous substances, and treat neonatal hyper-
bilirubinemia. Based on the batch release of the Human Albumin
Solution in the PRC in 2020, the market share of the Human
Albumin Solution manufactured by Octapharma was approximately
15.4%.

Marketing Network Development

The Group provides its marketing service through its internal teams
and their cooperation with third-party promoters. Hence, one of
the Group’s key development strategies is to continuously expand
the marketing network and enhance distributor and promoter
management. During the Reporting Period, the Group took “Flexible,
Professional and Efficient” as its objective, and strove to develop
its marketing team in respect of the ability of quickly responding
to market environment changes and executing operational plans
with high efficiency. Furthermore, the Group sorted out its human
resources in each division. The marketing team had its structure
streamlined and its performance management further refined, with
optimized allocation of sales resources that are invested in each
product, there by achieving higher efficiency of business operation.

BOEm

N=ES=ET iy g

MR R G ARR R 20t 4240FE R Y] - LBE+F
HIRREE  ZEMGECHSVNANAER
BRIBFENAMNAED - REREQFEMD
ETHEEIRNZRTN20%Z ERE - BEENEEE
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ANEA - SFHRFERITER  BREER
RHER BB EIRERER - AMBEREATE
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2ENIEE S A589FEM(20199F « 53.48
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At the same time, the implementation of “Two-Invoice System” took
place at a faster pace in each province. To positively respond to such
implementation, the existing structure of distributor network was
comprehensively sorted out. Based on sufficient communication with
its distributors, the Group has further extended its sales channels
to end markets through the collaboration between its internal sales
team and local distributors. Previously, promoters were allocated
by region. Now, the promoters are matched with each hospital of
the region concerned, which enables the Group's sales network
to reach the end market directly. Besides, the coverage of the
network has also been extended from large top Class-lll hospitals to
provincial, municipal and county hospitals, to keep improving market
penetration, thereby establishing a precise management system that
each hospital will have its respective promoters.

In addition, the Group has further improved the direct participation
of its internal marketing team in product marketing activities.
In this regard, approaches include regularly training third-party
promoters on product knowledge, hosting or taking part in medical
or pharmaceutical conferences, symposiums and product seminars
to directly partake in the academic promotion activities of products,
and extend the opinion leadership network for the main therapeutic
areas of products. All the approaches serve to ensure accurate and
timely delivery of product information to doctors. In addition to
product promotion, the Group has taken the initiative to invite third
party promoters from across the country to discuss and interpret the
major impact of national policies, to increase the added value and
attraction of the Group’s training.

Cold Chain Storage Facility

Considering the future demand for business expansion and the
significant demand for pharmaceutical cold chains in the storage
and delivery of blood products and bio-products, the Group has
constructed a cold chain storage facility in Shuangliu District,
Chengdu, Sichuan Province. The Group has completed the first
phase of its cold chain storage facility (15,000 square meters), which
can satisfy the Group's storage demand and provide better control
for the quality and safety of the blood products in our product
portfolio. Additionally, we will be able to provide third parties
with high quality pharmaceutical cold-chain storage services upon
completing the second-phase construction (which includes 25,000
square meters of cold chain storage and 47,000 square meters of
research and development base), which will be a new business unit
of the Group.

Save as mentioned above, the Group did not hold any material

investments, and there was no material acquisition or disposal of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the Reporting Period.
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4. Research and Development

The Group has entered into a collaboration agreement with the

China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences to develop “Sinco

I”, a new realgar-based chemical medicine for treating acute
promyelocytic leukemia. The collaboration aims for the upstream
extension of the Group’s business and the future provision of a
new medicine for patients in the therapeutic area. The Group is
currently making efforts in designing and building a pilot plant for
pilot experiments. During the Reporting Period, the Group incurred
RMBO0.8 million as the research and development expenses for

developing Sinco |.

FUTURE AND OUTLOOK

In 2021, the 2019 novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") epidemic may
continue to affect the global economic situation. Under the influence of
the epidemic, the amount of plasma collection in 2020 will be reduced,
and according to the delay of blood products, the number of batches
issued in 2021 will also be reduced accordingly. It is expected that in early
2021, there will be a short supply of albumin. In the short term, the price
of albumin will continue to rise. In addition, the current domestic order
of diagnosis and treatment is also gradually recovering, and the demand
for albumin in the market in 2021 is expected to show a recovery growth.
If supply fails to keep up with demand, it will also push up the price of
albumin in the market. In the long run, current demand for albumin is far
less than that of developed countries compared with China. Therefore,
the market has huge potential. Under the influence of the population
base, the demand will continue to increase in the future.
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Under the influence of the epidemic in 2021, people’s medical awareness
and needs will also increase with the emergence of the COVID-19
epidemic. Due to the clinical necessity for albumin and there is no
corresponding substitute product in the short term, it is expected that the
demand for albumin will increase in the future. After the implementation
of the “two-invoice system” policy in China, sales channels have
become flatter, and manufacturers can directly cooperate with end
customers. While actively conducting academic promotion activities, the
manufacturers’ business ideas are also having fundamental changes, the
original price-oriented thinking is transformed into a focus on academic
promotion and actively improving brand influence. In recent years,
products represented by human albumin have ushered in a rapid recovery.
Under the existing sales team and model system, the Group will continue
with its corporate sales team and development strategies in optimizing
the marketing network and the product portfolio, and maintaining the
business of blood products and antibiotics as a core therapeutic area. By
concentrating its advantageous resources, the Group spares no effort in
reaching a speedy completion of the adjustment on sales pattern under
the new policies for stabilizing its business. In respect of expanding its
marketing network, the Group will strengthen the control over its sales
team, improve its incentive mechanism, continuously promote presence
in the downstream of marketing network channels, and extend it to the
end market by establishing multi-mode cooperation with hospitals and
pharmacies, all in a bid to contribute higher profit to the Group, develop
core marketing capabilities and build a quality terminal promotion
network to accommodate more products.

Apart from the above, the Group will continue to enhance the
development of its internal control system and risk management, pay
much attention to and fulfill its corporate social responsibilities throughout
the Group'’s governance. The Group will offer its staff a great platform for
career development, and keep working to create a greater value for the
Shareholders.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 107 employees. For
the Reporting Period, the total staff costs of the Group were RMB11.7
million (2019: RMB12.5 million).

The Group’s employee remuneration policy is determined by factors such
as remuneration in respect of the local market, the overall remuneration
standard in the industry, the inflation level, corporate operating efficiency
and employee performance. The Group conducts performance appraisals
once every year for its employees, the results of which are applied
in annual salary reviews and promotional assessments. The Group's
employees are considered for annual bonuses according to certain
performance criteria and appraisals results. Social insurance contributions
are made by the Group for its PRC employees in accordance with the
relevant PRC regulations.
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The Group also provides continuous learning and training programs to its
employees to enhance their skills and knowledge, so as to maintain their
competitiveness and improve customer service quality. The Group did
not experience any major difficulties in recruitment, nor did it experience
any material loss in manpower or suffer from any material labor dispute
during the Reporting Period.

In addition, the Group adopted a share option scheme to recognize the
contribution by certain employees of the Group, and to provide them
with incentives in order to retain them for their continuing support in the
operation and development of the Group.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

Prior year adjustments have been made by the Company due to correction
of prior period errors (the “Errors”).

In July 2020, Ernst & Young was appointed as the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Errors were
identified when Ernst & Young performed audit procedures on the
opening balances according to Hong Kong Standard on Auditing 510
“Initial Audit Engagements — Opening Balances” during the review on
interim condensed financial information for the six months ended 30 June
2020. In August 2020, Ernst & Young, drew the Company’s attention to
the prior year adjustments to correct the Errors resulting from accounting
estimates and judgment perspective. Upon discussion among the Audit
Committee of the Company and the Board, and having been satisfied
that the prior year adjustments have been properly made, the Company
disclosed and restated the corrected financial figures under the prior year
adjustments in its interim results announcement for the six months ended
30 June 2020 and annual results announcement for the year ended 31
December 2020, which were published on 28 August 2020 and 31 March
2021, respectively.

To enable the Company’s shareholders and potential investors to make an
informed decision when dealing in the Company’s security, the Company
further includes the prior year adjustment in this report.

Details of which are set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in this report. In addition, the Company sets out
below the underlying causes of the Errors, and the basis of which the prior
year adjustments under each of note 2.4(a), (b) and (c) to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group were made.
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Errors under Note 2.4(a) and Basis of Adjustments
The Group’'s overseas pharmaceuticals supplier requires that

pharmaceuticals be shipped after payment is received or letter
of credit is issued. Due to the monetary tightening in Mainland
China since the fourth quarter of 2018, the Group was unable
to obtain sufficient credit facilities from banks for the issuance of
letters of credit. Since January 2019, the Group has entered into
pharmaceuticals import agency agreements with six state-owned
import agents which have been provided with more bank credit

facilities.

The specific transaction process is:

()

@)

Hong Kong subsidiary of the Group (“Hong Kong
Subsidiary”) enters into a purchase and sale agreement
with an overseas pharmaceuticals supplier (“Overseas
Supplier”) for the purchase of pharmaceuticals; the respective
import agents enter into a purchase and sales agreement
with Hong Kong Subsidiary to purchase the same batch of
pharmaceuticals from Hong Kong Subsidiary; one of the
subsidiaries in PRC (“onshore subsidiary”) of the Group then
enters into a purchase and sale agreement with the import
agent to purchase such pharmaceuticals from the import agent
and pay for the services fees;

After the above series of agreements are entered into,
the import agent will issue a letter of credit to Hong Kong
Subsidiary, based upon which, Hong Kong Subsidiary will
deliver the letter of credit to its bank which would then issue a
letter of credit to Overseas Supplier;

The above transaction process (1) and (2) do not have any
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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3)

)

After receiving the letter of credit issued by Hong Kong
Subsidiary, Overseas Supplier will ship the pharmaceuticals to
an import agent designated by the Group. After completing
customs clearance and obtaining satisfactory inspection
report, the imported pharmaceuticals will be pledged in the
warehouse of the import agent to secure the letter of credit
issued by the import agent. Based on the series of agreements
set out in above transaction process (1), after the obtaining
of a satisfactory inspection report on the pharmaceuticals,
the control of the imported pharmaceuticals have been
transferred to the Group’s onshore subsidiary. However,
the pharmaceuticals are pledged at the imported agent’s
warehouse to secure of the letter of credit issued by the import
agent.

In respect of the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
after the occurrence of transaction process (3), the Group
recognizes the inventory (temporarily pledged at the import
agent and already disclosed as restricted assets in the Group's
consolidated financial statements), as well as trade payables
(payable to the Overseas Supplier) and other payables (agent
services fee) to the import agent.

the Group’s onshore subsidiary needs to pay the import agent
certain deposits including the service fee for the letter of credit,
and such deposits can be used to deduct the other payables
mentioned in transaction process (5) to the import agent in
future;

In respect of the Group's consolidated financial statements,
after the occurrence of transaction process (4), the Group first
derecognises the other payables (agent services fee payable
to the import agent) recognized in transaction process (3) and
records the remaining balances as other receivables (receivable
from the import agent).
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5)

The Group derecognizes the liabilities (trade payables) to the
Overseas Supplier upon the maturity of the letter of credit and
correspondingly recognizes the other payables with the same
amount to the import agent at the meantime. The imported
pharmaceuticals are released to the Group’s onshore subsidiary
once the other payables (including the agent service fee
recognised in transaction process (3)) are settled.

However, Crowe was of the view that, when the Overseas
Supplier receives the letter of credit, the Group shall
derecognize the trade payables to the Overseas Supplier. As
of 31 December 2019, although the payment to the Overseas
Supplier had been not settled as the letter of credit was
outstanding then, Crowe suggested the Group derecognize
trade payables to Overseas Supplier and recognize other
payables to the import agent by offsetting the deposits
mentioned in transaction process (4).

The Group find that, as at 31 December 2019, the Group
has outstanding letters of credit not yet settled with overseas
suppliers amounting to RMB154,308,000; and the Group
made a payment of RMB67,565,000 to import agents as
deposits for outstanding letter of credit for the release of
pledged pharmaceutical products.

According to IFRS 9 3.3.1,
liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of
financial position when, and only when, it is extinguished —
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expires.”.

“an entity shall remove a financial
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According to IAS 32 paragraph 42, “a financial asset and a
financial liability shall be offset and the net amount presented
in the statement of financial position when, and only when,
and entity: (a) currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and (b) intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does
not qualify for derecognition, the entity shall not offset the
transferred asset and the associated liability.”

Therefore, the Group incorrectly reclassified trade payables
to other payables amounting to RMB86,743,000 and offset
trade payables against other receivables of RMB67,565,000
as at 31 December 2019, which led to an understatement
of prepayments, other receivables and other assets of
RMB67,565,000, an understatement of trade payable of
RMB154,308,000 and an overstatement of other payables of
RMB86,743,000.

Accordingly, below adjustments were made:
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Errors under Note 2.4(b) and Basis of Adjustments
Since the second half of 2019, Overseas Supplier started to lower
the price and no longer bear the transportation expenditure.
According to International Accounting Standard 2 paragraph 10
“the cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.”. Transportation expenditure is
the necessary cost incurred in bringing the pharmaceuticals to their
present location and condition, and should be recorded as inventory
costs and charged to cost of sales along the sales of the inventories.
As at 31 December 2019, the relevant imported pharmaceuticals
have not been fully sold. However, the Group charged all the
relevant transportation expenditure incurred into profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2019, which led to an overstatement
of the cost of sales of RMB3,811,000 and an understatement of the
inventories of RMB3,811,000. As a result, an accounting error was
identified for the year ended 31 December 2019.

In addition, as at 31 December 2019, antibiotics of RMB4,492,000
was not recognized by the Group although the customs clearance
of those pharmaceuticals had been obtained. According to the
agreement entered into with the supplier, upon the obtaining
of imported customs clearance, the control of antibiotics
pharmaceuticals are transferred to the Group. Therefore, an
accounting error was identified, which led to an overstatement
of prepayments of RMB4,492,000 and an understatement of
inventories of RMB4,492,000.

Errors under Note 2.4(c) and Basis of Adjustments

The total payment in advance was RMB6,907,000 as of
31 December 2019, among which, payment in advance of
RMB3,157,000 for realgar bio leaching techniques was recorded
in the financial statements of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical
Ltd. (REBER BB EZMEREELF) and
payment in advance of RMB3,750,000 for high-purity realgar

Technology Co.,

extraction techniques was recorded in the financial statements of
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (P9)|| BRI = B2 H R EERQ
Al). Management only considered the impairment of the payment in
advance of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. Crowe identified
the error but did not propose an adjustment as it was immaterial to
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in its
opinion.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The principal risks and uncertainties identified by the Group which may
have material and adverse impact on our performance or operation are
summarized below. There may be other principal risks and uncertainties
in addition to those set out below which are not known to the Group or
which may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

o Failure to maintain relationships with existing suppliers — The Group
currently sources all the products in portfolio from limited suppliers,
either directly or indirectly through their sales agents.

o Exchange rate fluctuation — The Group'’s purchase of products from
the overseas suppliers is denominated in US$, and certain items of
bank balances, other receivables, bank borrowings and bonds are
denominated in US$ and HK$.

° Decrease in gross profits due to increase in cost and competition.

o Experience prolonged delays or significant disruptions to the supply
of the products.

The Group believes that risk management is essential to the Group’s
efficient and effective operation. The Group’s management assists the
Board in evaluating material risk exposure existing in the Group's business,
and participates in formulating appropriate risk management and internal
control measures, and to ensure such measures are properly implemented
in daily operational management.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Human resources is one of the most important assets of the Group. The
Group strives to motivate its employees by providing them with a clear
career path as well as comprehensive and professional training courses. In
addition, the Group also offers competitive remuneration packages to its
employees, including basic salary, certain benefits and other performance
based incentives.

The Group purchases imported pharmaceutical products from overseas
suppliers, either directly or indirectly through their sales agents, and
generate revenue by on-selling them to hospitals and pharmacies through
distributors and deliverers. Our suppliers or their sales agents have
granted us the rights to market, promote and manage sales channels
for their products in China. The Group maintains a stable and long-term
relationship with its suppliers by providing them access to the growing
Chinese market with steady sales growth.

R b

AT BB A B AR EE R R T RAEE - %
ER\ & NEARAE R AT B & B MR IR B EEK
BEATHETE - RTXARESN - ATEER EMAE
B RAZIRE AT P ERERARKAZSERNT
Z e K T ARAEE -

o RELERAHEHERSBR - AEERKRHAE
BROFEEREZNBBIHERERZRENE

o ZaN
guulﬁu‘ |/:|\ °

o [EXFH-AKEAESIMUBERBENERNUE
JeAHE - BETRITHAR - RMORKSOR - RTT
AR R EFIA B AR TT B TR E -

o AIEIKEF B BHEMRD o

o ERHEEERKEERIEANPH -

AEERE RREEEAKENEERE LM ST
DEE - AEENERERHES S EAEEER
FRESMEANRRE - Y2 EBIESENRREERA
EIEGEE - ARBREAFSEEERBTLEENRE
BTG

B EFmERAE VRR
ANERERARBENEREEZ —  AREHON
PAB T B 28 3 R BR A DA T S B B IR FI FRAZ D
’BE - 1o AEBETSRERHEBNHHRF NN
HMSE  BRELTD  BTHEMNREMERE
B o

AEBBIMERNERIERHERERKREE
D% ARBBEHEMECXHEE TEENES
EERE - HERKEHERERTRMAETEE
i EEEMREIRIHEREREN - ARERNER
HRRERERRE  EUEE T LWEATEIE KA T
M5 - BERENHELEER -

29

2020 F3f EMAEZEBRARAT



The Group sells pharmaceutical products to distributors, who on-sell
the products to hospitals and pharmacies either directly or indirectly
through their sub-distributors. The Group maintains stable and long-term
relationship with its distributors by providing them guidance, training
and support to carry out more targeted field marketing and promotion
activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is primarily engaged in MPCM for imported pharmaceutical
products, a line of business that does not have material impact on the
environment. The key environmental impact from the Group’s operation
is related to electricity, water and paper consumption. The Group is fully
aware of the importance of sustainable environmental development, and
has implemented the following measures to encourage environmental
protection and energy conservation:

o Promoting paperless office
o Encouraging low-carbon commuting
e Ensuring reasonable energy consumption

During the Reporting Period, we did not incur any material cost of
compliance with relevant environmental laws and regulations

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s business and operations are subject to related laws and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC. During the Reporting Period, we have complied with all
related laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin
Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC, which would have significant impact on
the Group.
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Directors and Senior Managements

EENGREEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (EZ##) (“"Mr. Huang”), aged 55, founder
of the Group, has been the Chairman and executive Director of our
Group since April 2011. He is also the Co-Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and is mainly responsible for overall strategic planning and
operation management. Mr. Huang has served as the director of Risun,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, and all the subsidiaries of
the Company except for Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical Technology
Co., Ltd., Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceutical Technology
Co., Ltd., Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology Co., Ltd., Qingdao Ruichi
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd. and Chengdu
Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang
was the director and chairman of Vast Surplus since November 2004 up
until now, mainly responsible for strategic planning and operation of Vast
Surplus. After Vast Surplus transferred its exclusive distribution rights to
service Taurolite, TAD and Esafosfina to Hong Kong Prosperous Group
Holding Limited in March 2015, it has no other business operations. Since
then, Mr. Huang has been devoting a majority of his time to the Group’s
business. In addition, Mr. Huang was also a founder, chief executive
officer and director of Chengdu Ruixin Biopharmaceutical Technology Co.,
Ltd (“Ruixin”) from February 2004 to April 2011. The principal business
of Ruixin was consultation in the pharmaceutical products, providing
marketing and promotion services as well as assisting in obtaining
regulatory approvals and registrations for pharmaceutical products.
However, the pharmaceutical products serviced by Ruixin were mainly
traditional Chinese medicine extracts, which are different from those
of the pharmaceutical products serviced by the Group. Ruixin was not
engaged in any business which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business. Furthermore, Ruixin was
jointly owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang and 50% by Mr. Chen Xiangui
(an independent third party who is not considered a connected person
or associate of a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules (“Independent Third Party”)) and was never a member of the Group
which was readily disposable for corporate reorganization solely based
on Mr. Huang's decision. Eventually, as the management of Ruixin began
to focus on the business development of the Group since Mr. Huang
incorporated Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals in 2011, Ruixin did not have
any business or operations, which subsequently led to the passing of the
shareholders’ resolutions on 22 September 2015 to voluntarily dissolve
Ruixin.

Mr. Huang worked in the Drug Inspection Institute of Guangyuan (&7t
T % FhisER FT) from July 1988 to July 2004 as a pharmacist in charge
of drug quality research as well as collection and delivery of drug safety
information.
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Mr. Huang had been a director of Beijing Guangtong Shidai Medical
Consulting Company Limited (It R BB R EEINEFBERAR A A)
("Beijing Guangtong”), a limited liability company established in the PRC
in 2003, since its establishment up until 2004. Prior to the revocation
of its business license, Beijing Guangtong was owned as to 50%, 40%
and 10% by Mr. Huang, Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao respectively. Both
Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao are Independent Third Parties. Mr. Huang
confirmed that at the time of the revocation of the business license
of Beijing Guangtong, he was not involved in the daily operation of
Beijing Guangtong as he was focusing on the development of Ruixin’s
business. To be best of Mr. Huang's knowledge, Beijing Guantong had
ceased attending annul inspection (%) as it had no business operation,
resulting in its business license being revoked subsequently on 26
November 2004. Mr. Huang confirmed that there is no wrongful act on
his part leading to the revocation and he is not aware of any actual or
potential claim that has been or will be made against him as a result of
the revocation.

Mr. Huang obtained a master’s degree in EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University ( /%@ AE) in December 2008 and graduated from the
MBA programme of Renmin University (7B A AZ2) in August 2002.
He also obtained a bachelor’s degree in botanical resources (£ 418 ¥ & JR)
from Jilin Agriculture University (FF#2E 2 KE2) in July 1988. Mr. Huang
has been studying in the Univsite Paris — Dauphine under the Executive
Doctorate in Business Administration (EDBA) program since December
2013.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (2|3££§) (“Mr. Lau”), aged 47, is an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 8 November 2018. Mr. Lau is currently
an independent non-executive director of Kingdom Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 528), China Wood Optimization (Holding) Limited (Stock
Code: 1885) and United Strength Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2337). Besides, from May 2012 to October 2020, Mr. Lau served as an
independent non-executive director of Xiezhong International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3663). Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and holds a master’s degree
in finance from the City University of Hong Kong. He was extensive
experience in financial and accounting in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. Wang Qing (CE£#5) (“Mr. Wang"), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board. Mr. Wang worked at Dalian University of Technology (X
3818 T KE) from April 2003 up until now. Mr. Wang served as an
associate professor when he first joined Dalian University of Technology
and was later promoted to professor in November 2010 and he was
responsible for research and development (“R&D") and teaching. Mr.
Wang is currently the director of the Department of Pharmacy in the
School of Pharmaceutical Sciences and Technology at Dalian University of
Technology. From July 1986 to September 1997, Mr. Wang worked as a
pharmacist supervisor at Liaoning Provincial Medical Company Limited (&
BHERBREEAT]), where he was responsible for drugs inspection
and evaluation and participated in research and technical renovation.

Mr. Wang obtained his Ph.D. in treatment therapy system at Kyushu
Institute of Technology (JLJN &% A2) in Japan in March 2003 and
a master’s degree in treatment therapy system at Kyushu Institute of
Technology in March 2000. Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree
in medicinal plants at Jilin Agricultural University (F 722 KE) in July
1986.
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Mr. Liu Wenfang (2/325) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 83, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2017 to present, he serves
as a senior technical consultant in Shanxi Kangbao Biological Product
Co., Ltd (LFERBEEMR MR MDBBRAF]). From July 2017 to September
2020, Mr. Liu served as a senior technical consultant in China Biologic
Products Inc. (EHEWEBAER AT, a company listed on NASDAQ
(stock code: CBPO). From February 2011 to June 2017, he serves as
an independent director of China Biologic Products Inc. From 2007 to
2011, Mr. Liu worked as a chief consultant at Sichuan Yuanda Shuyang
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd (P9I 3= K E[5 B2 B D A BR A B]) where he was
responsible for research and promoting new theories and applications in
the medical field. From 2000 to 2007, he served as the chief engineer and
director of Hualan Biological Engineering Inc. GER4E Y TIZRRMHBRRA
a]) where he was responsible for supervising the manufacturing process
and quality management. From May 1998 to May 1999, Mr. Liu served
as the chief engineer of Guiyang Qianfeng Bio Manufacture Company (&
[SRIE 8T B R S £ F]) where he was responsible for research
and developing new products. From 1978 to 1988, Mr. Liu worked in
the Institute of Blood Transfusion, Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences
(R B2 2R Ep #g I AT 3T FT) and was engaged in the segregation and
purification of blood and protein and research, development and quality
analysis of blood products.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree majoring in biochemistry from the
Shenyang Institute of Applied Ecology, Chinese Academy of Sciences
(R BRI R & 5 E B BT 2 FT) (formerly known as the Institute of
Forestry and Soil Sciences) in August 1963.

Mr. Bai Zhizhong (B& ) (“Mr. Bai”), aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 September 2020,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board. Mr. Bai has over 30 years of experience in the finance industry.
Mr. Bai served as the chairman of Bank of China Investment Management
Company Limited from January 2015 to June 2017. He worked with the
Bank of China from July 1995 to January 2015, where he had previously
served as the president of the Guangdong province branch, the Sichuan
province branch, the Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region branch and the
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region branch of Bank of China, and he
served as the head of comprehensive planning division of Bank of China,
Shanxi Province branch.

Mr. Bai obtained a master degree in business administration from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University, the PRC in 2007, and he was qualified
as a senior economist of Bank of China Assessment Committee of
Qualifications in Economic Professional Positions (H7 B £R 17 4% 775 55 3 5= 17
AR TEZEZ E®)in December 1994.
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Senior Management

Mr. Jin Min (£8) (“Mr. Jin"), aged 43, jointed our Group in February
2014 as the vice president of the Marketing department of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.and was appointed as a co-chief executive
officer of the Company in November 2020, with Mr. Huang Xiangbin,
are responsible together for the Group’s overall business development,
operation and management. Mr. Jin has over 19 years of experience in
the pharmaceutical industry. Before joining the Group, Mr. Jin worked
with Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (BJNE BN AR A R)
from August 2001 to January 2014, and last served as the director
of the marketing department responsible for product promotion and
management. Mr. Jin obtained a bachelor’s degree in management in
June 2001 and obtained a bachelor’s degree in science in June 2000 from
Sun Yat-sen University, the PRC.

Mr. Li Yifan (Z2—) (“Mr. Li"), aged 41, joined our Group in February
2015 and was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company in
June 2015, mainly responsible for the overall financial strategic planning,
internal control system management, and investment and financing
management of the Group. Mr. Li is also the director of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Li worked for China Ploymetalic Mining Limited, a company listed on
the HKSE (stock code: 2133) from March 2011 to January 2015, and
last served as the deputy chief financial officer responsible for financial
accounting and management. From February 2005 to February 2011,
Mr. Li successively served as an auditor of the Shenzhen Branch and a
senior auditor of the Chengdu branch of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP.
Mr. Li obtained a Master of Science in Finance degree from the University
of Stirlling in January 2005 and graduated from Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics (FAF B4R K E) in July 2002 with a bachelor’s
degree in management. Mr. Li has been a Chinese Certified Public
Accounting since January 2012.
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Mr. Zhang Tao (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 36, joined our Group in November
2013 and was appointed as the general manager of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. in November 2020, mainly responsible for
its overall operation and management. Mr. Zhang was as the director
of president office and deputy general manager of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., respectively. Mr. Zhang is also the director
of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd, Sichuan Sinco
Biological Technology Co., Ltd and Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang
Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd.. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Zhang worked for Chengdu Huide Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (BX&/Z 1=
BRI AR /A F]) from July 2010 to July 2012 as the project manager
of R&D department and product registration manager, respectively.
Mr. Zhang obtained a Master of Science in Clinical Pharmacology from
University of Glasgow in December 2013 and graduated from Chengdu
University of TCM (B &BAR B2 %% K £3) in July 2007 with a bachelor’s degree
in Pharmaceutical Preparation. Mr. Zhang has been a Licensed Pharmacist
since December 2010.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

The Board hereby presents its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive marketing,
promotion and channel management service for imported pharmaceutical
products and medical devices in China. The analysis of the revenue of the
principal activities of the Group during the Reporting Period is set out in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review and Results

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period is
provided in “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 6 to 30. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the Reporting Period using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the Financial Highlights on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income on page 81 of this annual report.

Final Dividends
The Directors do not recommend a final dividend for the Reporting Period.

Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
27 May 2021 to Tuesday, 1 June 2021, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend the
forthcoming AGM to be held on Tuesday, 1 June 2021. To be eligible for
attending and voting at the AGM, all transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 26 May 2021.

Financial Summary

A summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities for the last five
financial years are set out on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s products purchased from the
largest supplier, accounted for 96.6% (2019: 78.9%) of total products
purchased, and products purchased from five largest suppliers accounted
for 100.0% (2019: 100.0%) of our total products purchased.

For the Reporting Period, the Group's sales to largest customer accounted
for 33.1% (2019: 18.1%) of our total revenue, and sales to the five
largest customers accounted for 56.8% (2019: 39.7%) of our total
revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group'’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Subsidiaries
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31 December 2020
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out on page 84 in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Cayman
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association,
amounted to approximately RMB5.7 million (as at 31 December 2019:
RMB12.2 million).

Bank and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2020 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders, the Company had
adopted the Share Option Scheme which became effective on 10 March
2016 (the “Listing Date").

1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive
or reward for Eligible Participants (defined below) for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries.

2. Eligible participants

The Board may subject to and in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, at its discretion
grant options to any full-time or part-time employees, including
executives, senior management of officers (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors) of the Company,
its subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest, and to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants who, in the
absolute discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to
the Group (collectively, the “Eligible Participants”).

3. Life of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years from 1 February 2016, after which time no further option
will be granted.

4. Total number of Shares available for issue
The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Scheme shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 160,000,000, representing 9.46% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

5. Maximum entitlement of each participant
Unless approved by Shareholders, the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted to any participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the total shares in issue.
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Offer period and amount payable for options

An option may be accepted by an Eligible Participant within 15
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the grant
of option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

The period during which an option must be held before it can be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
shall be one year after the date on which the option is granted. The
Board may in its absolute discretion impose further restrictions on
the exercise of the option.

Period within which the Share must be taken up
Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions
on the exercise of the option, any option may be exercised one year
after the date on which the options is granted and shall expire on
the earlier of the last day of (i) a six year period from the date of
such grant and (ii) the expiration of the Share Option Scheme.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The price per Share at which a Grantee may subscribe for Shares
upon exercise of an option (the “Exercise Price”) shall be a price
determined by the Board but in any event shall be at least the
highest of:

(i)  The closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's daily
quotations sheets on the date on which the option is granted;

(i) The average closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant of that option; and

(iii)  The nominal value of the Shares.
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The summary of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme that
were still outstanding as at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

B AR B AR AR AT 8132 MR 2020612 A31 B M ARTT
EHRBRAERLA AT

Number of Options
BREHE
On On
1 January 31 December
2020 2020 Exercise
Grantee's name #2020 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 120205 Pricet® Date of grant Exercise period®
RRALZ 1B18 i i B Pt 124318 fiFEy RiEAH s
Employees in aggregate 15,650,000 - - - - 15,650,000 HK$0.568 21 September 2016 21 September 2017-
EEAH 05687 201659A21R 20 September 2022
017F9A218%
202298208
Notes: Hiat -
(1) The exercise price represent not less than the highest of (i) the closing price (1) fTEETNMERUAT=EPHNERE : ()N2016F9A

@)

of HK$0.540 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotation sheets on 21
September 2016, being the date of such grant; (ii) the average closing price
of HK$0.568 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotation sheets for
five business days immediately preceding the date of such grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Share at HK$0.0001 per Share.

40% of the options granted shall be vested and can be exercised upon once
year commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2017) and a
continuous employment of one year. Another 30% of the options granted,
shall be vested and can be exercised upon two years commencing the date
of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2018) and a continuous employment of two
years. The remaining 30% of the options granted, shall be vested and can
be exercised upon three years commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21
September 2019) and a continuous employment of three years.
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Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Directors
The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhang Zhijie (resigned on 8 January 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

Mr. Bai Zhizhong (appointed on 1 September 2021)

In accordance with article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Bai
Zhizhong shall hold office only until the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, have offered himself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Lau
Ying Kit and Mr. Liu Wenfang will retire and being eligible, have offered

themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming AGM are set
out in the circular to the Shareholders.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 31 to 36 of this annual report.

Confirmation of Independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be independent in
accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letter of Appointments
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from the date
of service agreement, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the date of the letter of appointment, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either part to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest subsisted during or at the end of the Reporting Period.
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Compliance of Non-Competition Undertakings

On 1 February 2016, the controlling shareholders entered into a deed of
non-competition in favour of the Company (for itself and on behalf of all
members of the Group), pursuant to which they have undertaken, subject
to and except as mentioned in the Prospectus, that they, would not, and
would procure that none of their associates (other than any member
of the Group) will directly or indirectly engage in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business as described in the Prospectus in the PRC or any other places in
which the Group carries on business.

For further details of the deed of non-competition, please refer to the section
headed "Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus.

The Company has received from each of the controlling shareholder a
written confirmation on the compliance with the non-competition during the
Reporting Period. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the
deed of non-competition have been complied with by each of the controlling
shareholders and duly enforced during the Reporting Period.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had
any interest in any business which competes or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Reporting Period.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial party of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Employees and Emolument Policy

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had an aggregate of 107 full-
time employees. The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's operating
results, individual performance of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.

Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals with
Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Changes to Information in Respect of Directors

Up to date of this report, there were no changes to information which are
required to be disclosed and had been disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, no rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
were granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised by them. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate during the
Reporting Period.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Position in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
debentures of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under provisions of the SFO), or (i) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register
maintained by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interest in Shares or Underlying Shares of the Company
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Number of Approximate
Shares or percentage of
Name of Director and underlying shareholding
chief executive Nature of Interest Shares® interest®
BB R RE
EERTETHRAESHSE EEME HEROEB® BHBES e
Mr. Huang®@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000 (L) 62.06%
|HELEO AR LB R
Jin Min Beneficial owner 13,680,000 (L) 0.81%
8 EmfaA
Notes: st

(1) The Letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Mr. Huang was the settlor of a trust in which Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited was the trustee and held the entire interest in
Fullwealth Holdings Limited, which in turn held the entire beneficial
interest in Risun. Mr. Huang was deemed to be interested in the
1,050,000,000 Shares beneficially held by Risun.

(3)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,691,890,585 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2020.
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Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited &% {2 5%
752 5T A3 B Fullwealth Holdings Limited 2 &6
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model
Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2020, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following person/entities (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO:

(i) Interestin the Company

M E X ESE SN - 2020812 A31H » EERA
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(i) RARTHER

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name Nature of Interest Shares® interest®
=E e EENE RHBHBEO REHBIEIES
Risun@ Beneficial owner 1,050,000,000 (L) 62.06%
Risun@ BEn#EAA
Fullwealth Holdings Limited Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000 (L) 62.06%
Fullwealth Holdings Limited RSP A E R
Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited® Trustee 1,050,000,000 (L) 62.06%
Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited® — S#EA
Wisen Group Holding Limited (“Wisen"”)®  Beneficial owner 90,000,000 (L) 5.32%
Wisen Group Holding Limited([Wisen])®  Ezs# A A
Mr. Liu Sichuan® Interest in controlled corporation 90,000,000 (L) 5.32%

BIBNEED

NP EE R an
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Notes:
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Mr. Huang is the settlor of a trust in which Wickham Cay Trust
Company Limited is the trustee and holds the entire interest in
Fullwealth Holdings Limited, which in turn holds the entire beneficial
interest in Risun. Fullwealth Holdings Limited, Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited and Mr. Huang are deemed to be interested in the
1,050,000,000 Shares beneficially held by Risun.

(3)  Wisen is owned as to 100% by Mr. Liu Sichuan. Therefore, Mr. Liu
Sichuan is deemed to be interested in the 90,000,000 Shares held by
Wisen.

(4)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,691,890,585 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2020.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting
Period.

Connected Transaction

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules, the guarantee provided by Mr. Huang
as disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements is a
connected transaction exempted from announcement, reporting, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above connected transaction.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
During the Reporting Period, there was no material breach of the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Cayman Companies Law where the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

Permitted Indemnity Provision
As at the date of this report, all Directors of the Company were covered
under the liability insurance purchased by the Company for its Directors.

Charitable Donations
During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable donations of nil
(2019: Nil).

Disclosure Under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibilities of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules
regarding the provision of advance by the Company to en entity.

Code of Conduct Regarding Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
with the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with
such code of conduct throughout the Reporting Period.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practice adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 51 to 74 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved
by the HKSE and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public
at all times as of the date of this report.
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Audit Committee

The principal duties of the audit committee of the Company (”Audit
Committee”) include the review and supervision of the Group’s financial
reporting system, the preparation of financial statements and internal
control procedures. It also acts as an important link between the Board
and the external auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit.

The annual results for the Reporting Period of the Company have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Independent Auditors

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe") resigned as auditor of the Company
after taking into account various factors, including the professional risk
associated with the audit, the level of audit fees and the availability of its
internal resources in light of its current work flows. After considering the
facts and circumstances, the Audit Committee, having been delegated to
power to oversee the effectiveness of the external auditor, was of the view
that it would be in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole to replace Crowe with another sizeable accounting firm.

The Company had received a letter from Crowe confirming that there are
no matters in connection with its resignation that needs to be brought to
the attention of the Shareholders or the creditors of the Company.

Ernst & Young was appointed as auditor of the Company to fill the causal
vacancy following the resignation of Crowe with effect from 20 July 2020
and hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of
the Company.

Ernst & Young shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible will
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

Environmental, Social and Governance

As a responsible corporation, the Company is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its businesses. The Company has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business including health
and safety, workplace conduct, employment and the environment.
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Important Events After the Year

Save as the resignation of executive Director and change of member of
board committee which was disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 8 January 2021 as well as change of joint company secretary
and authorized representative which were disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 22 January 2021 and 31 March 2021, the Board is
not aware of any material event requiring disclosure, that has taken place
subsequent to 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

Sichuan, the PRC, 31 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Company has complied with all applicable
code provisions under the CG Code except for the deviation from code
provision A.2.1 as mentioned in the paragraph headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” of this report. The key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are outlined later in this
report. The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees
the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and performance.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management
of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs,
the Board has established four Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the nomination committee
(the "Nomination Committee”) and the internal control and corporate
governance committee (the “ICCG Committee”) (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of
legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be reviewed
on an annual basis.

TEERER
REEBRNIREFRKENLEES  URERER
BT REBCEEERBEY - AARIDRMN TR
RIS+ AT M 2 E AT A ([ D EEATA D 1E
REARFHBEEGTA - 822020123181
FE - BARE R RITRAR ] —BATaREEESFA
XA UGN - RRE—HETHEERTRIRAT
BEATANEN - AR ANEECEERRAIREH
RAIRE T XXl - AR B EERMNEREME
ERER - UHRETEE AT

B8

HE

EESARIHREREE - BEEAREEMREIRE
REREHERR - EFECALKESREEER
TERAEEREEERKLETENENNEE - B
EEARFRESEHNER EFQCKUNEES
eZ8g AEZEZEE ¥FHMZEE REZEE
(MReZEg ) hAEN REEEAZ 8 (A
EHEREXERZRER (R EFEBE)) - EF
CERAEFRBERTHEOREREMFNEE -

2REFCERBAZREREHNER - —EER
KRB RPERAOMETE ©

ARBEHHHEEHERFARFEENEER
o WEEBFELAREE -

2020 54 WHABBRRARAR 51



Corporate Governance Report ¥ ERIRE

Board Composition
As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises one executive
Directors and four independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin
Ms. Zhang Zhijie (resigned on 8 January 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

Mr. Bai Zhizhong (appointed on 1 September 2020)

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has been in compliance with
the requirements under rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has also complied with rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s performance.
Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) to ensure that the Company will, when determining the
composition of the Board, consider Board diversity in terms of, among
other things, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the
approach towards achieving diversity on the Board. Pursuant to the Board
Diversity Policy, all Board appointments will be based on merits, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board.
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As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties.

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any other
Director and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as the identity and the time
involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments
and any subsequent change to the Company in a timely manner.

Dividend Policy
The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on 21
December 2018. A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

The Dividend Policy is to consider the payment of dividends, to allow
shareholders of the Company to participate in the Company’s profits
whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Group's future growth.
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The Board shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends:

the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

- retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

—  the Group’s liquidity position;

—  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and

- other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of
the Company. The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from
time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company also
arranges regular seminars to provide Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated and
provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a Director.
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According to the information provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors throughout the year ended 31
December 2020 is as follows:

RIBZEZMREMNER - EENEE2020F12A31
AItFEAESHEIBME0NT

Nature of Continuous
Professional
Development Programmes

Name of Director EEEH BESERRTENNTE
Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. Huang Xiangbin |mEW R E A C&D
Ms. Zhang Zhijie (resigned on 8 January 2021) RSB (R20214F1 ASHEBHT) A, C&D
Independent Non-executive Directors BT TEE

Mr. Lau Ying Kit BTG - A, C&D
Mr. Wang Qing pasti-piotas A B, C&D
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35k A, C&D
Mr. Bai Zhizhong (appointed on 1 September 2020) BEFR A (R2020F9 A1 B ERT) C&D

Notes:

A.  Attending seminars and/or meetings and/or forums and/or briefings

B. Giving talks in the seminars and/or meetings and/or forums

C.  Attending training relevant to the Company'’s business conducted by lawyers

D.  Reading materials relevant to corporate governance, director’s duties and
responsibilities, listing rules and other relevant ordinances

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

Under the organization structure of the Company, Mr. Huang was
the Chairman of the Board and the co-chief executive officer of the
Company (“CO-CEQ"). With Mr. Huang's extensive experience in the
pharmaceutical industry, the Board considered that vesting the roles of
chairman and co-chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial
to the business prospects and management of the Group. The check and
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the senior
management and the Board, which comprises experienced and high
calibre individuals. Accordingly, the Board believes that this arrangement
will not impact on the balance of power and authorizations between the
Board and the management of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from their respective date
of appointment subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from their respective date of appointment.

The appointments of executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles of Association and the applicable Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-appointment
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at every AGM and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or
as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
Shareholders at the next general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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Board Meetings

The Company intends to hold Board meetings regularly, at least four times
a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and are adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint company secretary
with copies circulated to all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, six Board meetings and one general meeting R EHR @ HEITANXREEFSEZ R —AREK
were held and the attendance record of each Director is set out in the & > FSEEHNHFEBLEIHNTE
table below:
Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to attend Eligible to attend
the Board meeting(s) the general meeting(s)
BHE/WHE BHEAHE
Directors Bz EZEeRRE RRRERE
Mr. Huang Xiangbin Eﬁﬁ%‘ﬁi 6/6 1”1
Ms. Zhang Zhijie R+
(resigned on 8 January 2021) (E§2021¢1ﬂ85§¥ﬁ) 6/6 17
Mr. Lau Ying Kit B HpE 6/6 11
Mr. Wang Qing RS 6/6 11
Mr. Liu Wenfang BN EE 6/6 11
Mr. Bai Zhizhong (appointed on Bkt
1 September 2020) (R2020F9 A1 HEZR(T) 1Al 0/0

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
dealings in the Company'’s securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code for the
Reporting Period.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors could have recourse to
seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company's expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the management.
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Corporate Governance Function and Internal Control and
Corporate Governance Committee

The Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee currently
comprises four members, namely Mr. Lau Ying Kit (chairman), Mr.

Liu Wenfang, Mr. Wang Qing and Mr. Bai Zhizhong, all of them are

independent non-executive Directors.

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of the Directors and delegated the corporate governance
duties to the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee

which includes, without limitation:

(a

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company;

to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the Company (the “Corporate
Governance Report”); and

to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an on-going basis and ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries has been conducted at least
annually and report to Shareholders that it has done so in its
Corporate Governance Report. The review shall cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The written terms of reference of the Internal Control and Corporate
Governance Committee are available on the websites of the HKSE and the
Company.
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During the Reporting Period, two ICCG Committee meetings were held
and the attendance records are set out below:

RRERA - HBITMARNBERREEEREZES
g3 HECHESINMT

Attendance

Number of meeting

Directors Bz HERY, EERH
Mr. Lau Ying Kit BTG E ”n
Mr. Wang Qing pasti-piotas ”n
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35k ”n
Mr. Bai Zhizhong (appointed on 1 September 2020) HER A (FR2020569 A1 HERT) 0/0

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises four members, namely Mr.
Lau Ying Kit (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang, Mr. Wang Qing and Mr. Bai
Zhizhong, all of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include but not limited to the
following:

(@) to review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the work
performed by the Auditor, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Auditor;

(b) to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the Auditor before submission to the Board;
and

(c) toreview the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures, including the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, three Audit Committee meetings were held
and the attendance records of the Audit Committee Meeting are set out
below:

,%

R HBIT=ZRERZESSH  BREE8
SEHENLFELEERIINT

Attendance/

Number of meeting (s)

Directors Ex HERY EERH
Mr. Lau Ying Kit BTG - 3/3
Mr. Wang Qing b pita 3/3
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35 3/3
Mr. Bai Zhizhong (appointed on 1 September 2020) HEFR LA (FR2020F9 71 HEZE(T) 0/0

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
including three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Wang
Qing (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Bai Zhizhong.

Ms. Zhang Zhijie resigned as a member of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 8 January 2021 and Mr. Bai Zhizhong was appointed as
a member of the Remuneration Committee on 8 January 2021.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include but not
limited to the following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

2. toreview and approve performance-based remuneration with
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board;

3. to determine the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. These include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;
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5.  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, three Remuneration Committee meetings
were held and the attendance records are set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of meeting

Directors Bz HEREEERY
Mr. Wang Qing RS A 3/3
Ms. Zhang zhijie (resigned on 8 January 2021) RSB T (R2021F1 ASHEHT) 33
Mr. Liu Wenfang 2 EE 3/3
Mr. Bai Zhizhong (appointed on 8 January 2021) HER A (R2021F1 ABAEER(T) 0/0
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members, including
one executive Director namely Mr. Huang Xiangbin (chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr.
Lau Ying Kit.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. toassess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and the succession planning for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer; and;

5. toreview the Board diversity policy.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. The
written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, three Nomination Committee meetings were
held and the attendance records are set out below:
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Attendance

Number of meeting

Directors Bz HERY,ERRH
Mr. Huang Xiangbin EHEW R E 3/3
Mr. Lau Ying Kit DU GESE 3/3
Mr. Liu Wenfang BN EE 3/3
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Nomination Policy

1.

64

Objective

1.1

1.3

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates
to the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Director as general meetings or
appoint him/her to fill causal vacancies.

The nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination
Policy”) helps the Nomination Committee and the Board to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Group’s business.

Selection Criteria

2.1

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:

(1)  Reputation for integrity;

(2) Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest; and

(3) Diversity of the Board in all its aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and are not meant to be

exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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3.

Nomination Procedures
3.1 Appointment of Directors

(M

The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s)
suitably qualified to become Board members, having due
regard to the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy, and assesses the independence of the proposed
independent non-executive Director(s) as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.

The Board considers the individual(s) recommended by
the Nomination Committee, having due regard to the
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board confirms the appointment of the individual(s)
as Director(s) or recommends the individual(s) to stand for
election at a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed by
the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board will be subject to re-election by Shareholders
at the next following general meeting, in accordance with
the Article of Association.

The Shareholders approve the election of individual(s),
who stand(s) for election at general meeting, as
Director(s).

3.2 Re-appointment of Directors

(1

The Nomination Committee considers each retiring
Director, having due regard to the Nomination Policy and
the Board Diversity Policy, and assesses the independence
of each retiring independent non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.

The Board considers each retiring Director recommended
by the Nomination Committee, having due regard to the
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.
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The Board recommends the retiring Directors to stand for
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles of Association.

The Shareholders approve the re-election of Directors at
the annual general meeting.

3.3 The Board shall have the ultimate responsibility for all matters
relating to the selection and appointment of Directors.

4. Review of the Nomination Policy

4.1 The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination
Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to

the Board for consideration and approval.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The remuneration
of senior management, whose biographies are set out on pages 140 to
142 of this annual report, for the Reporting Period are set out below:
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
Respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s
results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates on Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 75 to 80 of this Annual Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard Shareholder investments and Company assets and reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

The Group's internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal
audit department are reviewing the financial condition and internal
control of the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all
branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
the risk management and internal control system to be effective and
adequate.

Main Characteristics of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Group's risk management framework is structured in the following
“Three Lines of Defense” model as a guide:
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The Board acknowledges its responsibility of overseeing the Group's
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually through the Internal Control and Corporate
Governance Committee (the “ICCG Committee”) and the Audit
Committee. Such review encompasses all major control aspects, including
finance, operation and compliance. Such risk management and internal
control systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Board has completed its annual review of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020, with all the above major control aspects covered. The Board has
considered the operation of risk management and internal control systems
to be generally adequate and effective, with no significant areas brought
to its attention during the year.

The ICCG Committee and the Audit Committee assist the Board to fulfill
its responsibilities of risk management and internal control, ensuring
adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience, staff training
courses and related budgets for the Group in executing its accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions. The committees also
considers the important investigation results concerning the matters of
risk management and internal control, reports to and raise suggestions to
the Board.

1st Line of Defense

By preparing a risk list with risk control responsibility allocated to
departments, the Group is able to deliver risk management across all
the business departments. These departments continuously review and
assess the risks that may have a potential impact on corporate operation,
and effectively execute the process control for business according to the
respective functions and departmental regulations, all in a bid to raise the
efficiency in risk management.

2nd Line of Defense

Composed of nominated department managers and senior management,
the Risk Management and Internal Control Team organizes business
departments to identify, assess and manage the risks that may have a
potential impact on corporate operation, and ensures the implementation
of proper measures and internal control regulations to address major
risks. In the meantime, the Team monitors risks and takes measures to
reduce the risks in daily operation, provides timely response to and follow
up of the investigation results of internal control from the Internal Audit
Department, and confirms to the Board as to the effectiveness of such risk
management and internal control systems.
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3rd Line of Defense

The Internal Audit Department executes the actual review procedure, to
collect the evidence on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, and report the review results
to the ICCG Committee. In addition, the Department raises suggestions
to the Board and the management, to address major institutional
inadequacies or any control loopholes spotted.

External auditors further complement the third line of defense in respect
of the major risk and control issues on financial reporting procedures
that are spotted during the review process. For instance and illustrative
purposes, Ernst & Young has assisted the Company in correcting the
Errors and disclosing the prior year adjustments set out in notes 2.4(a),
(b) and (c) to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in this
report.

Procedures Applied to Accessing, Managing and Rectifying
the Errors

The Board and the Audit Committee have performed the following
procedures in reviewing and approving the prior year adjustments (in
chronological order):

1. Upon the receipt of management’s report on the Errors and prior
year adjustments, the Audit Committee discussed with Ernst &
Young on the causes of the Errors and the basis of which the prior
year adjustments ought to be made;

2. Upon discussion and agreement with Ernst & Young, the Audit
Committee submitted to the Board the prior year adjustments
together with the details and findings; and

3. The Board, upon reviewing and considering the Audit Committee’s
report and careful consideration of the matter, approved the prior
year adjustments and the disclosure of same.

Measures taken/ to be taken by the Company

The Company has, at all relevant times up to the date hereof, an
accounting and financial reporting policy (the “Policy”) in place and been
strictly adhering to the same for the financial year ended 31 December
2019 up to the date hereof. The Company has reviewed and updated the
Policy annually, and as needed and necessary where there are changes to
the accounting standards and policies as well as changes in circumstances
arising from significant events. In this regard, the Company is of the view
that the Policy is sufficient for maintaining proper internal control within
the Company.
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The Company shall continue to adhere to and ensure a strict
implementation of the Policy, by arranging its accounting and finance
personnel to attend training regularly to keep abreast of the Policy and
the relevant accounting and regulatory changes.

In addition, when handling complicated transactions, the Company will
consult with its auditor for opinion, and report and discuss the matters
with the Audit Committee, in order to prevent similar error occurring in
the future.

Explanations of why the Errors were Made

Regarding the accounting error under note 2.4(a), in the opinion of the
Company’s predecessor auditor, Crowe, the liabilities (trade payables)
to Overseas Supplier shall be derecognised by the Group when Overseas
Supplier received the letter of credit, and at the meantime, other payables
to the import agent should be recognized by the Group; while the Group
consider that, the liabilities (trade payables) to Overseas Supplier shall be
derecognized when the payment to Overseas Supplier was settled upon
the maturity of letter of credit and the corresponding amount shall be
recognized as other payables to the import agent.

Regarding the accounting errors under note 2.4(b) and note 2.4(c),
the Group and Crowe considered that amounts were immaterial to
the financial statements for year ended 31 December 2019. Therefore,
adjustments were not proposed by the Crowe.

Communication with Crowe in resolving the Errors

Crowe was notified of the prior year adjustments on 24 August 2020 and
suggested that they have different opinions on the prior year adjustments
under note 2.4(a) as they considered the liabilities (trade payables) to
Overseas Supplier should be derecognized when Overseas Supplier
received the letters of credit. Regarding the prior year adjustments under
note 2.4(b) and note 2.4(c), Crowe advised that those audit differences
were immaterial to the financial statements and did not propose
adjustments for the year ended 31 December 2019 as they set planning
materiality based on the revenue when auditing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for year ended 31 December 2019.
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Procedures Applied to Identifying, Assessing and

Managing Major Risks

—  Determining the scope: preparing uniform risk terms and risk
assessment standards for the Group

- Risk identification: identifying the risks that may have a potential
impact on corporate operation

—  Risk assessment: considering risks in respect of the degree of
importance of their impact on business and their occurrence, and
assessing the risks identified

—  Risk management: establishing risk management policies and
internal control procedures, to avert or reduce risks

- Risk monitoring and reporting: continuously monitoring relevant
risks, ensuring proper procedures of internal control, and regularly
reporting to the management and the Board on the results of risk
monitoring

Function of Internal Audit

The Group's Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The Department’s main
responsibilities are to review the financial conditions and internal control
of the Company and all its subsidiaries, communicate with department
managers and senior management on the identified problems, non-
compliance issues and inadequacies, and jointly prepare rectification and
improvement solutions. The Department also follows such rectification
results, and reports to the ICCG Committee and the Audit Committee.

Information Disclosure System

The Group has formulated its information disclosure system, to ensure the
identification and confidentiality of potential inside information until it is
disclosed according to the Listing Rules in a consistent and timely manner.
The procedures for publishing and processing inside information include:

o Business department managers as the people in charge of
information reporting;

e  Senior management as the people in charge of the information
confidentiality of their respective business segments;

e The Board as the party in charge of information disclosure; and
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e  The Investor Relations Department and the Board Secretary as
the parties responsible for managing information disclosure, the
reporting, audit and disclosure of information which needs public
announcement, and archiving and keeping such information
disclosure documents and announcements.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration for the audit services provided by the Auditor to the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB3,100,000. There is no remuneration paid to the Auditor in respect of
non-audit services.

Company Secretary

Ms. Peng Yunlu (“Ms. Peng”), one of our joint company secretaries
of the Company, is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters and ensuring that the Board policies and procedures,
as well as the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company also
engages Mr. Li Kin Wai (“Mr. Li"”), manager of Corporate Services of
Tricor Services Limited, as another joint company secretary to assist Ms.
Peng to discharge her duties as company secretary of the Company. The
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Peng, one of the
joint company secretaries of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Peng and Mr. Li have
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

On 22 January 2021, Ms. Li Ching Yi (“Ms. Li") resigned as the joint
company secretary of the Company. Immediately after the resignation
of Ms. Li, Ms. Wong was appointed as the joint company secretary of
the Company with effect from 22 January 2021. On 31 March 2021,
Ms. Wong resigned as the joint company secretary of the Company.
Immediately after the resignation of Ms. Wong, Mr. Li was appointed as
the joint company secretary of the Company with effect from 31 March
2021.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor Relations
The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies. The
Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions.
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The AGM provides opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees will attend the AGM to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend the AGM to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the independent auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a shareholders’
communication policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship
and communication between the Company and the Shareholders and
maintains a website of the Company at www.sinco-pharm.com, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are available for public access.

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution will
be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the HKSE in a timely manner after each
general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company according to the Articles of Association. Any
one or more members holding as at date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or any one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures
are available on the website of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report ¥ ERIRE

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the headquarters
of the Company at E5-1805, Global Centre, No. 1700, North section of
Tianfu Avenue, High-Tech Zone, Chengdu, Sichuan, PRC. (Email address:
sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.com).

Change in Constitutional Documents

The amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association have
been adopted on 1 February 2016 and with effect from the Listing Date.
And there were no significant changes in the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B AR S

Ernst & Young ZXKEBEESE Tel E5E: +852 2846 9888
EYﬁj( 22/F, CITIC Tower HEPIR Fax f§E: +852 2868 4432

1 Tim Mei Avenue REE1E ey.com

Central, Hong Kong S RE221E

To the shareholders of Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 81 to 181, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥ &% S A0 3R &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{Z=2020F 12 A31HILFE

Key audit matters (Continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to the matter. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
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procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

BRESE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNAEEBRENSE

Revenue recognition

TR 7 BT BT

The Group recognises revenue when the amount can be reliably
estimated, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and when the control of the goods is transferred
to the buyer. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group recognised revenue of RMB2,050 million. Some terms
of sales arrangements with customers including the timing of
transfer of control of goods, delivery specifications, generate
complexity and judgment in determining sales revenues and
revenue cut-off. The risk is, therefore, that revenue is not
recognised in the correct period or that revenue and associated
profit is misstated.

The Group’s disclosures about revenue is included in notes 2.5,
3 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEER N a2 A S 15T + A 568 KR FKAC BTz i A B
B2 REEREEIEBEE BRI - B E20204F
12A31HIFFE + BFEEER K am AR E2,0508 57T ° &
P E LT HERE TIEK(E1E B RIEHIEEE R - XEH
18)  HEEEHEWZ RIS B E R IEFIHE - B
W TR R E R BT 57U 25 8L #5 2R Y 25 R 1 B 55 7 e &l

5 -

BEE BN RKBEF AT E R EHREMT2.5 384 -

76

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

Our audit procedures included:

e understanding revenue recognition policy and performing
tests of controls on revenue recognition;

° reviewing sales contracts and supplementary agreements
to check the relevant key terms of revenue recognition;

° performing analytical procedures by comparing the unit
selling price, the sales volumes and gross margin to that
in prior years by products and by month;

° obtaining confirmation from key customers and reviewing
the reconciliation of any material difference by check to
related documents; and

e performing the cut-off test for revenue recognised before
and subsequent to the balance sheet date so as to check
whether revenue is accounted in the appropriate period.

o BRRUERTERER Mt s MR TR BRI,

o EHHEAONMHEIHE -
fERR

AR S Wi s R O AR B R i

o BBKEMEE HENMEMNEREMMZAMERBAE
FELE  MTOMEF

e HMISMREFPER LEBRSHEXMHEHNEEMNE

REENHER &

AR RN RN TEE NS - AR E RS

o BREEH
RS HARASR

EARE



Independent Auditor’s Report ¥& 3 ZE MRS
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{Z=2020F 12 A31HILFE

Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥ &% S A0 3R &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{Z=2020F 12 A31HILFE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

/8
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥& 3 ZE MRS
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{Z=2020F 12 A31HILFE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

REMR B RS BRRAAENEE

(

&)

RAEEERAKECE ST ERETIRE X

BEESNERNEE  AEELFERENRIE
MERNBBARTHPARE - UBAIRES BEE
BB LR NBREXEE - WESHLERRR
FHEEATHIAEE - BFANZBERETE
AERETELREMBHRERARMERIREE « i
HERETR  AETESHNER - BSNER
NEEZHEHRE A AAESHETRERE
B o A RREMFHERAT G EEET

b A B HRROBEREIIHAR BRERATR
(BREE)  UAREAMBEHRRELTE AN KRB
HEAR 5 Rt

o EREANERAXRKIDNMBENEST
RNMBEEMNETERR USRSV BHRABRE

- BFRREE  BEBERWITRENEGT
- BERBEFNETERAERNAE -

79

2020 3R ERRBEEERARAR



Independent Auditor’s Report ¥ &% S A0 3R &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{Z=2020F 12 A31HILFE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matter communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
these matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ek EMEEWER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020%12A31HIEFE

2020 2019
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
s AR¥T T AREBFT
(Restated)
(gE5)
REVENUE =3 4 2,049,803 1,176,409
Cost of sales HEMAR (1,775,977) (956,562)
Gross profit EA 273,826 219,847
Other income and gains HUA R Ues 5 13,669 15,055
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RS (89,836) (114,536)
Administrative expenses TR (40,552) (45,805)
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss on B S W FIEREER
trade receivables B () 17 350 (1,326)
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss on FTATENRKIA - M EUEIE
financial assets included in prepayments, MEMEENSRIEERE
other receivables and other assets ES1ERE, (BE) 18 (48) 54
Other expenses HEfbF (12,657) (10,308)
Finance costs AT R AR 6 (8,797) (20,026)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB BRI 7 135,955 42,955
Income tax expense FriSfif > 9 (17,818) (19,405)
PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FRRMK
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2HEWEAEE 118,137 23,550
Attributable to: BTN ALTHER :
Owners of the parent BRAFHEEA 118,137 23,552
Non-controlling interests FEFERR R - )
118,137 23,550
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary SAREEERFTEA
equity holders of the parent: EEERER :
Basic AR
— For profit for the year (RMB) —FRRF(ARE) 10 0.070 0.014
Diluted i3
— For profit for the year (RMB) —FRREF(ARE) 10 0.070 0.014
2020 % BHEBRIZERARAT 81



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB R

31 December 2020 42020412 831H

2020 2019
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
=S AR¥T T AREBFT
(Restated)
(gES)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BENRE 1 188,249 196,993
Investment property HEME 12 6,679 7,133
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13(a) 49,934 1,041
Intangible assets R EE 14 22 45
Payments in advance 1SN e 796 508
Deferred tax assets ELEHIBEE 15 646 721
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 246,326 206,441
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 16 242,561 259,266
Trade and bills receivables B S REMGRIE &R % 17 578,687 30,710
Prepayments, other receivables and TEATFIE ~ ELfh B RIE K2
other assets HMEE 18 40,714 109,181
Other financial assets measured N AETER
at amortised cost HemEE 19 = 1,990
Pledged deposits BHEAER 20 = 5,001
Cash and cash equivalents B REEEEY 20 143,765 219,755
Total current assets RBEERLE 1,005,727 625,903
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables Z S EMTRIA 21 700,320 300,466
Contract liabilities AHEE 22 27,806 38,582
Other payables and accruals Eh e < 5R18 e FEET FIE 23 161,946 116,876
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings sFRRIT R EMER 24 77,986 187,484
Tax payable JETRIE 21,999 11,361
Lease liabilities HESE 13(b) 736 1,022
Total current liabilities REAERE 990,793 655,791
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE (BE)FE 14,934 (29,888)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES AEERRBERE 261,260 176,553
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position RS BAFEAR IR R
31 December 2020 72020512 H31H

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MiteE ARETT AREF T
(Restated)
(FeE7)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRITER 24 3,042 -
Other payables and accruals Hopth JE AT FRIE S FEETRRIE 23 93,422 130,107
Leases liabilities HeEasd 13(b) 367 154
Total non-current liabilities FREBEBEEE 96,831 130,261
Net assets EEFE 164,429 46,292
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners of BARER AELER
the parent
Issued capital BRI A 25 136 136
Reserves &1 27 165,201 47,064
165,337 47,200
Non-controlling interests IR ER (908) (908)
Total equity B 164,429 46,292
Huang Xiangbin Liu Wenfang
EEW 230
Director Director
EE EE
2020 £ MMEBEERARAT 83



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAEREBE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020%12A31HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRTEEARLE
Changes
Share Share innon- Non-
Issued ~ premium Contributed ~Statutory  option controlling Accumulated controlling Total
capital  account  surplus  reserve  reserve interests losses Total interests  equity
BEfT Rt BRE  FER FER

BE EER  BEES iERE fife BE%® ZiHE &3t BE EREE
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note 25) (note 27(@)) (note 27(b)) (note 27(c))  (note 27(d)
(Witzs) (Wer) (Wstnw) (W) (hiane)

At 1 January 2019 R2019%181A 136 289,113 4250 14,529 2887 4014 (2913000 23629 (906) 22,723
Profit and total comprehensive income AR R 2 AR

for the year - - - - - - 22,898 22,898 2 28%
Transfer to statutory reserve EREATERE - - - 218 - - (2,186) - - -
Equity-settled share option arrangements  MEH& e ERERHE

(note 26) (Hi226) - - - - 19 - - 19 - 19
At 31 December 2019 20198128318 136 289,113 4,250 16,715 2,906 4014 (270588) 46,546 (908) 45,638
At 1 January 2020 R202051818 136 289,113 4,250 16,715 2,906 4014 (270,588) 46,546 (908) 45,638
Correction of prior year errors (note 24)  EIF F—EE 5224 - - - - - - 654 654 - 654
At 1 January 2020 (restated) R202051518 (BE7)) 136 289,113* 4250 16,715* 2,906* 4,014*  (269,934)¢ 47,200 (908) 46,292
Profit and total comprehensive income AT R 2 AN EE

for the year - - - - - - 18131 118137 - 118137
Transfer to statutory reserve EETETEE - - - 3,839 - - (3,839) - - -
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12A31AR 136 289,113* 4250 20,554* 2,906* 4,014%  (155,636)* 165,337 (908) 164,429

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB165,201,000  * ZERBERREGAVMBRARANGABEARE
(2019 (restated): RMB47,064,000) in the consolidated statement of financial 165,201,0007C (2019 (L E5I|) : AR¥47,064,000
position. JT) e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/_.]_\ Iﬁﬁ/)lb%%‘%

Year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020%12A31HIEFE

2020 2019
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt EE ARBT ARBFIT
(Restated)
(gES)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R&EHREHRLRE
Profit before tax BB A& A 135,955 42,955
Adjustments for: AT BIEFE -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — ¥)% - E KREITE 1" 7,804 9,213
Depreciation of investment property REYERE 12 454 114
Depreciation of right-of-use assets PREESERE 13 1,138 1,006
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EEH 14 23 68
Unrealised foreign exchange gains REAIRBE W as 1,100 (63)
Imputed discount on deposit received Bz e M ERE 5 (8,510) -
Losses on disposal of items of property, plant HEDE  BEN
and equipment HiEEE - 39
Interest income from financial assets at fair BAFE AR
value through profit or loss SREEMBHRA 5 (615) -
Interest income from financial assets measured & SEAR ANEH E RS FIEE
at amortised cost FEUA 5 (39) -
Equity-settled share option expense AR A E IR X 26 - 19
Finance costs BATS AR 6 8,797 20,026
Bank interest income RITHBHA 5 (1,295) @311
Write-off of inventories FEME 7 = 106
Write-down of inventories to net realisable FEMRZE
value JEEFE 7 3,248 -
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment loss on B EWTEREER
trade receivables B, (Bm) 17 (350) 1,326
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment loss on ;Hr)\i%i\ﬁ TIE - EfhELL
financial assets included in prepayments, HEREMEENS R
other receivables and other assets EERERBERE(FE) 18 48 (54)
147,758 74,444
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 M RIE I UL S 1R o0 (547,627) (5,859)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables and  FE{TEUIE « H fh fE U IE &
other assets HinEER D 25,852 26,197
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD/(Ehm) 13,457 (44,566)
Decrease/(increase) in payments in advance B FER LD, (EM) (288) 7,819
Increase in trade payables Z 5 R FRIBE N 399,854 193,565
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals E th & (< 2038 [ JE 51 708
a0, i) 114,880 (160,104)
Decrease in contract liabilities EHEERD (10,776) (91,947)
Cash generated from operations EEMBRS 143,110 (451)
Interest received B E 1,295 311
Tax paid BAHE (7.105) (9,408)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating RETEERMRE(FTR)
activities HERE 137,300 (9,548)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #AR8HEHRhER
Year ended 31 December 2020 & Z=2020512 831 ILFfE

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt EE AR%T R ARBFT
(Restated)
(f&E51))
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEBFESHRLRE
Purchase of items of property, BEVE BEK
plant and equipment Bl (372) (555)
Addition of leasehold land NEMELH (49,114) -
Purchase of wealth management products BEOBARATERA
classified as financial assets at fair value BT REEN
through profit or loss BATE @ (164,000) -
Redemption of wealth management products BRI ERERATE
classified as financial assets at fair value SFABRNTREEN
through profit or loss BATE @ 164,000 -
Purchase of wealth management products BB O BRI A
classified as financial assets measured AENEREEN
at amortised cost B E M = (21,990)
Redemption of wealth management products B 015 28 B SR A
classified as financial assets measured AENEREEN
at amortised cost B EmM = 20,000
Interest income from financial assets BATHEFAEBRNEHEEN
at fair value through profit or loss FEWA 5 615 -
Interest income from financial assets measured — IRE SR AT BN S BIEE
at amortised cost FEWA 5 39 -
Redemption of financial assets measured BRI AT 2
at amortised cost SREE 1,990 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities  REEZHIARLSRETHE (46,842) (2,545)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEBFBHERE
Principal portion of lease payments HENFOREHH (990) (871)
Interest portion of lease payments HERNKHF S 13(b) (95) (92)
Interest paid BEAFLE (6,770) (10,785)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREAD BTG FHIE 120,330 47,484
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERIT R EAMER (226,312) (5,000)
Increase/(decrease) in other HoAth JEA FRIB R FER TR
payables and accruals &,/ Cd) (98,605) 193,272
Increase/(decrease) in prepayments, other T RUA - H A ERERIE R
receivables and other assets HiEELm/ (Rd) 42,567 (67,565)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing BEFEEAE(FTA)
activities REBE (169,875) 156,443
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #ARrSHSHRER
Year ended 31 December 2020 & Z=2020512 831 ILFfE

2020 2019
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
BT AR¥TF T ARETFTT
(Restated)
(/8 5E75))
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND  RE&RESZEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS i,/ (hd)FE (79.417) 144,350
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net PN v (1,574) 63
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ F#IR & NIBEEEY 224,756 80,343
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERBER
END OF YEAR RE%EY 143,765 224,756
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERREEED
CASH EQUIVALENTS ERDT
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BIISARR RETAIR & &
statement of financial position REEEY 20 143,765 219,755
Time deposits with original maturity of less than B35 [REIHI A T #8:8 = 18 A
three months when acquired, pledged as REERBEMN
security for letters of credit TFEIFER 20 - 5,001
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BRE&REBXRAIRER
statement of cash flows REZEEY 143,765 224,756
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AT

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

388

Corporate and Group Information

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 March
2015. The registered office address of the Company is P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong is Room 2403,
Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong with
effect from 20 November 2020.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in marketing,
promotion and channel management services for improved human
plasma-based pharmaceuticals, antibiotics and other pharmaceuticals
focused on therapeutic areas and complementary to human plasma-
based products and other fast-growing categories in Mainland
China. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

In the opinion of directors of the Company (the “Directors”), Risun
Investments Limited (“Risun”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), is the parent and the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

REAREEER
FERIERBEEIZERAR 2B ([AREF ) RH2015
FIR6HERERSTMKIHBRART o &
ANEIR M9 =R H A AP.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands ©« N AR BB EEEEMI AR LT HE
11155k LR N2403%E + B20209F 11 A20R
REAER o

RAEE - ARBREMB AR (G A&E])
TERPERMNERE ABMTER AR
R BT EB RIS B A RS M HF Bl B EL IR IR ST

RERIEMOEMERNMISEE  HEMRE
BIERY - AREEX2EBOELENAFEIL &

ARABIESZ([EZF])RA  Risun Investments
Limited([Risun ) (fE R BB RS ([ RBER
REE DEMERINAR]) ARARNFARR

BARPZERAT] o



Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE

31 December 2020 2020412 H31H

1 Corporate and Group Information (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

1

ARAREEER(E)

IR RER

AABHBRRFBENT

Place and date of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
SRR % BRITEER AR
£ REHMEEXEH EMRA BEEEIM TEXH
Direct Indirect
Ef# it
% %
Starwell Group Holding Limited 26 November 2013 Us$50,000 100 - Investment holding
HEEEZRERLAT BVI 50,0005 RERKR
2013F11H26H
EBBARES
Bright Ritzy Limited 5 August 2016 US$1 100 - Investment holding
REBRLT BVI 17T REER
201658 H5H
EBABRES
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals 17 February 2011 US$10,000,000 100 - Sale of pharmaceutical products
Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China 10,000,000% 7T HEEmR
HEENRBEBR LR 201142A178
R/ HEN
Hong Kong Prosperous Group Holding 20 December 2013 HK$100 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Limited Hong Kong 1008 7T HEEm
BEEREEIRERAR 2013F12A208
Glorious Empire Limited 26 August 2016 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
BEER AT Hong Kong 18T REER
201658 A 268

2020 3R HERL
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RZRMIET

31 December 2020 2020412 H31H

1 Corporate and Group Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1

ARAREBER(E)

MELRER(E)

Place and date of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
SR % BRITEER RNRIFELG
£ REMEEXH AR BEREAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
=k M
% %
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals 1 April 2011 RMB 100,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China  AR#100,000,00070 HEEM
M BN REEEREE LR 201154818
HE/ B
Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology 25 November 2013 RMB1,000,000 - 70 Research and development on
Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China A R%1,000,0007T pharmaceutical products
M| R YRR AR AR 2013F 114250 BoHE
HE/ B R
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical 26 February 2014 RMB22,000,000 - 100 Providing warehouse facilities for
Technology Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China  AER#22,000,0007C pharmaceutical products
RAFERARERMBEREMLRAY 2014528268 REUERE BRI
R/ HEN
Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang 4 March 2015 RMB100,000 - 100 Consultation on medical and
Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China AR#100,0007T biological technology
("Chengdu Hengsheng") 20153748 BERENEIES
PREDBER S0k B R HE/ HE R
BRAADR([HEERE])O
Xizang Linzhi Ziguang Pharmaceutical 17 November 2014 RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Co., Ltd. ("Linzhi Ziguang") PRC/Mainland China ~ AR10,000,0007T HEEm
FRMEEAEZEREERFD 2014F11 7178
(IZ5k]) HEL/ B
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE

31 December 2020 2020412 H31H

1 Corporate and Group Information (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1

ARREEER(E)
MELRER(E)

Place and date of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
TR AL T2 BRITEER RNRIFELG
£ RAMEEELH AR BEREAML TEEH
Direct Indirect
=k M
% %
Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd. 25 August 2016 RMB5,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
ERA (LB ESERARD PRC/Mainland China A R%35,000,0007C HEER
20168 A25H
HE/ B,
Qingdao Yusheng Hengying Trading 15 November 2016 RMB30,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China ~ AR #30,000,0007C RERKR
EERREABSERAF0 2016511158
HE/ B R
Qingdao Ruichi Pharmaceuticals 15 May 2007 RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China ~ A #10,000,0007C HEEmR
ERmAEEARAF 2007F54158
B/ RE R,
XKR Prosperous Holding PTE. Ltd. (i 06 August 2020 SGD10,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
B S EERR A R A R Singapore 10,0007 NI4T HEER
202058 H6H
BN

(i) Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals”), Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd. (“Sinco
Shanghai”), Qingdao Yusheng Hengying Trading Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao
Yusheng”) and Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu
Sinco”) are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
law of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

(i)~ These subsidiaries are registered as domestic enterprises under PRC law.

(i) The subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under
the law of the Republic of Singapore.

()  ENENEEEEREEAR ()] E
X)) BME(L8EZFERAR(TEMEL
Bl EERRERESBERAR(EEERE])
K pRERER A B A R A ] ([ EREE DR
FEARLME([HE ] EEEMAINEBED
£

(i)  ZEMBRARREFEERIMARNERE -

(i) ZPHE D RRERT IR KA BDE R M RS B
BiE -
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RZRMIET
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.1

92

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
comprise standards and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"), and International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Standing Interpretations
Committee Interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Committee that remain in effect, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
certain wealth management products which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(¢)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.1 RBEE(E)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained, and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RZRMIET
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised IFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s financial statements.

94

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 9,

IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1
and IAS 8

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)
Definition of Material

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised IFRSs are described below:

(a)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance to
all parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on measurement
and reporting financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also
clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainly in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework
is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein
override the concepts or requirements in any standard. The
Conceptual Framework did not have any significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

(0)

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.
The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions or
other events that occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address issues
affecting financial reporting in the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an
alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncertainty before the introduction of
the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors about
their hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any interest rate hedge relationships.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

96

(d

(e)

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier
application permitted and shall be applied retrospectively. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, or both. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 Reform — Phase 2!
and IFRS 16
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and IAS 28 an investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® ®
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before intended Use?
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a

Contract?
Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
IFRS Standards 2018-2020  /llustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 412

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
5 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020,

IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023
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2.3

98

Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3
an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to
the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an
asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a
business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS
37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combination for
which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued) 2.3 CEME SR ENAE PR IS 3R &%

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address
issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest benchmark is replaced
with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated without
adjusting the carrying amount when accounting for changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets
and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the amendments
permit changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform
to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through the
normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary relief to
entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows an
entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the separately
identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably
expects the RFR risk component to become separately identifiable
within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an
entity to disclose additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark
reform on an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but
entities are not required to restate the comparative information.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank loans denominated in
RMB based on the China Loan Prime Rate as at 31 December 2020.
If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a
future period, the Group will apply this practical expedient upon
the modification of these borrowings when the “economically
equivalent” criterion is met and expects that no significant
modification gain or loss will arise as a result of applying the
amendments to these changes.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued) 2.3 BEME N RENE PRI ISR &%

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address in inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and
joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption
now.

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify that
if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period
if it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify
the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued) 2.3 CEME SR ENAE PR IS 3R &%

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group'’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as
well as contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as an
adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial application
without restating the comparative information. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to
be applicable to the Group are as follows:

102

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender
on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS
16.
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2.4 Correction of Prior Period Errors

With a review of the presentation of financial statements, the
Directors of the Company decided to restate certain items in
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended. The effects of the prior period adjustments on the
Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
are summarised as follows:

As at 31 December 2019

2.4 FEIFATHASER
KEEAMBRENZINARE - ARREERT
EFR2019F 12 A3 1 BMERE AR K AR
ATHEE  URBEZBLFEMNGSEBERE
hEEWER  FEAERREDRRGEBESRE
= o BB Y AEEE E2020F12A318 &
FEMNMBHREOTZEFMAT

R2019412A31H

Prior period adjustments

RIERAE
As previously
stated (a) (b) (0 As restated
B2 (@) (b) © g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT  ARBTR ARBTT  ARBTZT ARETT
Payments in advance BRALNHE 3,665 - - (3,157) 508
Inventories FE 250,963 - 8,303 - 259,266
Prepayments, other receivables BRFE - EENGIA
and other assets REMEBE 46,108 67,565 (4,492) - 109,181
Trade payables B e TIE 146,158 154,308 - - 300,466
Other payables and accruals H b e 7B M ER T 08
- current —nE 137,764 (20,888) - - 116,876
Other payables HAi B
- non-current —3EnE 195,962 (65,855) - - 130,107
Reserves f#t 46,410 - 3,811 (3,157) 47,064
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2.4 Correction of prior period errors (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 EFFIH

R R (8)

HZE2019F12A318IFE

Prior period adjustments

Al ER AR
As previously
stated (a) (b) (0 As restated
BEZF (@) (b) © g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETR ARETFT  ARETFE AREFT
Cost of sales HEMA 960,373 - (3.811) - 956,562
Other expenses HipA% 7,151 - - 3,157 10,308
Profit and total comprehensive FREFREE
income for the year et 22,896 - (3,811) (3,157) 23,550
Attributable to: L‘/{T)\tﬂgﬁ :
Equity holders of the parent NARREEA 22,898 - (3,811) (3,157) 23,552
Non-controlling interests 3&} [eEss ) - - - )
Eamnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the (SYNGIESiil b
parent; FEAEGGRER
Basic B3N
— For profit for the year (RMB) —EREF(ARE) 0.014 - - - 0.014
Diluted e
— For profit for the year (RMB) —FRRERARE) 0.014 - - - 0014
Cash flows from operating activities ~ E&EHMERLTE
~ Profit before tax —BR AR R 42,301 - 3,811 (3,157) 42,955
— Decrease in prepayments, other —TBRFUE - BRI
receivables and other assets ELEMEERD 21,705 - 4,492 - 26,197
- Increase in inventories —TFEEM (36,263) - (8,303) - (44,566)
— Decrease in payments in advance —REEZNTERD 4,662 - 3,157 7,819
- Increase in trade payables — B SN ZIEEM 39,257 154,308 - - 193,565
— Increase/(decrease) in other —Hi N EE R ES &
payables and accruals I CR) 119,911 (280,015) - - (160,104)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating 4X&/E&) / (FTH)
activities é 3 116,159 (125,707) - - (9,548)
Cash flows from financing activities RETEMERERE
~ Increase in prepayments, other —TBRFE -« bR
receivables and other assets BREAEEE = (67,565) = = (67,565)
— Decrease in other payables and —HtENFER
accruals S ZIER D = 193,272 = = 193,272
Net cash flows from financing activities EE&EEIFTFREREFE 30,736 125,707 - - 156,443
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2.4 Correction of prior period errors (Continued)

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
commenced to engage certain import agents to deal with
the Group's import of pharmaceuticals, including import
services and issuance of letters of credit to the Group for its
endorsement to overseas suppliers. The relevant imported
pharmaceuticals covered by the letters of credit are pledged to
the import agents as security. The pledge of pharmaceuticals
can be released when the Group makes full payment to the
import agents. Upon the settlement of letters of credit issued
by import agents, the Group reclassifies the settled amounts
from trade payables to other payables due to import agents.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had outstanding letters
of credit not yet settled with overseas suppliers amounting
to RMB154,308,000; and the Group made a payment of
RMB67,565,000 to import agents as deposits for outstanding
letters of credit for the release of pledged pharmaceuticals.
The Group incorrectly reclassified trade payables to other
payables amounting to RMB86,743,000 and offset trade
payables against other receivables of RMB67,565,000 as at 31
December 2019. In addition, the Group incorrectly classified
the cash flows arising from the transactions with import agents
as operating activities instead of the financing activities.

Therefore, the effect of correcting the above errors has resulted
in:

(i) an increase in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets of RMB67,565,000;

(i) anincrease in trade payable of RMB154,308,000;

(i) a decrease in other payables of RMB86,743,000, of
which RMB65,855,000 are classified under non-current
liabilities; and

(iv) a decrease in net cash flows from operating activities of
RMB125,707,000 and an increase in net cash flows from
financing activities of RMB125,707,000.

2.4 BEIEAIEASEER(B)

(a)

HZE2019F12A31 B ILEE - XEBH
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67,565,0007T ° LA - A B GRG0
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MIEREEE)

Btk - BIE SR ESI B

() TFEMFIE - HtERREREBEE

1A R#67,565,0007T :

(i) BESHSENZXREBEENARE
154,308,0007T :

(i) EAbERFRIER D AR ES6,743,000
JC - Eff AR#65,855,000 00 R
ERBEE &

(iv) EEEHABREREFERIDAR
#125,707,000 7T & B & JE B ATIS IR
& = F 8 5 A R # 125,707,000
ﬁo
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2.4 Correction of prior period errors (Continued)

(b)

106

As at 31 December 2019, the Group charged transportation
costs attributable to unsold inventories to profit or loss
amounting to RMB3,811,000. In addition, there was a purchase
cut-off error of inventories, which led to an overstatement of
prepayment amounting to RMB4,492,000 as at 31 December
2019.

Therefore, the effect of correcting the above errors has resulted
in:

(i)  anincrease in inventories of RMB8,303,000;

(i) a decrease in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets of RMB4,492,000; and

(i) a decrease in cost of sales, and a corresponding increase
in reserves, of RMB3,811,000.

As at 31 December 2019, there was a payment in advance
in respect of rights for the use of certain technical knowhow
with a gross balance before impairment amounting to
RMB6,907,000. According to the Group's impairment
test made on the payment in advance as at 31 December
2019, a full impairment loss should be required, but only
RMB3,750,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Therefore, the effect of correcting the above error would
result in an increase in other expense for the year ended 31
December 2019 and a decrease in reserves as at 31 December
2019, of RMB3,157,000 with a corresponding decrease in
“Payments in advance” as at 31 December 2019.
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25 TESTEEHE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its certain wealth management products at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

110

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of
items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Useful lives
Buildings 34-60 years
Machinery 10 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

Leasehold improvement 3-5 years or over the remaining

term, whichever is shorter
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RZRMIET
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 X ES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents items of property, plant and
equipment under construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.

Any gain or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment losses and
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The principal estimated useful life of intangible assets is as
follows:

Software 5 years

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five to
seven years, commencing from the date when the products are put
into commercial production.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RZRMIET
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 X ES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Office premises and warehouse
Leasehold land 50 years

2 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
on which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group elected to present the lease liabilities separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 X ES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that is
considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in other income in profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as other income in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the leases are accounted for as
finance leases.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 TESHBEHRE(E)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 X ES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under “pass—through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 X ES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RZRMIET
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 X ES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables
and accruals, amounts due to related parties and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 TESHBEHBE(SE)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender or substantially different terms, or the terms an existing
liability are subsequently modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average method. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RZRMIET
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 X ES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in “finance costs” in
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 TESHBEHRE(E)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RZRMIET
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 X ES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the goods.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RZRMIET
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 X ES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income from distribution services is recognised when services
are completed at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Subject to
shareholders’ agreement, the Company may also allot and issue
certain new shares in the Company for the purpose of providing
incentives for specific employees to remain employed in the Group
and to motivate them to strive for the further development and
expansion of the Group. Employees (including the directors) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 27 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RZRMIET
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 X ES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in a defined central pension scheme managed by the
local municipal government of the areas in Mainland China in which
they operate. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant part of the payroll of these employees
to the central pension scheme. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. The Company’s
contributions have been capped to up to HK$1,500 per month
since 1 June 2014 for each of its employees in Hong Kong and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 TESHBEHBE(SE)

(Continued)

Other employee benefits

Housing fund

Contributions to a defined contribution housing fund administered
by the Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland
China are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. At a meeting of the Board
held on 31 March 2021, the Directors resolved not to pay final
dividends to shareholders for the Reporting Period.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared. In the event that the interim dividends
are paid out of the share premium account, shareholders’ approval
at an extraordinary general meeting is needed. When these interim
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared,
they are recognised as a liability.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 X ES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

1 3 2 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.5 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their profit or loss is translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

Significant Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

Revenue recognition

To determine the timing of revenue recognition, the Group applies
judgements in determining the point in time at which customers
obtains control of promised pharmaceuticals and the Group
satisfies the performance obligations. Depending on the nature
and terms of the agreements, the Group may recognise revenue
when the pharmaceuticals inspection report is obtained or when
pharmaceuticals are received by customers.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements.

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT”) and Hong Kong corporate
income tax (“HK CIT”)

The Group's operating subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject
to PRC CIT and the operating subsidiary in Hong Kong is subject
to Hong Kong CIT. As a result of the fact that certain matters
relating to PRC CIT and HK CIT have not been confirmed by the
relevant local tax authorities, objective estimates based on currently
enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies are required
in determining the provision for PRC CIT and HK CIT to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact the income
tax expense and tax provision in the period in which the differences
realise. The carrying amount of tax payable as at 31 December 2020
was RMB21,999,000 (31 December 2019: RMB11,361,000).

1 34 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

EEEHER(E)

T RERE(E)

E 55 B B S B 1

AR B 5 PR B R e L 5 R FOR 0 TR
BB - BERRERAEELESEER(AE
BEPERRIR)NSAESHHMERIBEA
BT -

BREBENRENAEENBERRAFEDN
Ko NEBKFHERM - BIARAEEER AE
BEGERIELE - BT - HMIEAZERR
(B REERE FRHER AR —FRIL - B
ERNEMFEEEN  AEHARBEEOE - N
BERH  BEESRABEOREER - WO
RIEIEE R E2E -

HREBEMSENE  BALERR RIEHE
EER MBI ETHHEBEARMGE - &
HEEEBRNEEZIXBERE S RIRARERR
P8 - AEBEBEEEEBBRRSSIRLER
RIAMERREP AENEBERENBR - B
REEE S RUFUENFREE BN ERIEE
REATEIRA M TE18 ©

BT EF ([P B 28R ) ] BB 12

FIRE ([ BB EFERH])

RS B 7E AP B it ) 2 B B R BB AR P B 1B
¥R MESSHNEENBRARBRMNES
FIBH o ARMARH 5 B TS B 14 R A SR A B R
BIEMSHEEENERNE TSR  ALE
R BEPEMSH LB ST ESHBEERERER
IRE  JRR R EAREBCR EH B EUEFT - i
ZEBENHRHBEREVATESEER

ZEEEETEMGHAI R EBEE R RN
TEFEE - 1A2020F12 A31H - FEATEHIAER
EEAAR#21,999,00075 (2019412 5318

AE#11,361,0007T) °



Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of a similar nature. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period. The carrying amount
of inventories as at 31 December 2020 was RMB242,561,000 (31
December 2019 (restated): RMB259,266,000) and the impairment
provision for inventories for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
RMB3,248,000 (2019: nil) (note 7).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses can be
utilised based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2020 was
RMB646,000 (31 December 2019: RMB721,000). Further details are
given in note 16 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets with definite lives are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.
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Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4,

The Group's revenue and contribution to consolidated results are

mainly derived from its sales of human albumin solution, antibiotics

and other pharmaceuticals focused on therapeutic areas and

complementary to human plasma-based products and other fast-
growing categories in Mainland China, which are regarded as a
single reportable segment in a manner consistent with the way

in which information is reported internally to the Group’s senior

Kk EEDHER

AEES Y E R RARENEMEIEREER
FEAMIANBER TR - AR - FER
SRS MAR ARG B i M EAD B R B S LA PROR
BRENOHEER  RMAREAE - RED
B EREARAAEESRERERS BN
WERD B R RFTE —BEO T ARE © tboh
AEEEANEIBEIFRBEEMNTEAM - B

management for purposes of resource allocation and performance BRAERABAMEEIN  REZV DS
assessment. In addition, the principle non-current assets employed i
by the Group are located in Mainland China. Accordingly, no
segment analysis is presented other than entity-wide disclosures.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wi
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFIT
Revenue from contracts with customers RERFPEHMINE
Sales of goods BYISHE 2,049,803 1,176,409
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHNWE
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information () Wa BB
2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
Types of pharmaceuticals E-fing i)
Human albumin solution AMBEETFR 1,889,012 848,156
Antibiotics (Axetine and Medocef) MAER(ZAMREEN) 160,791 325,994
Others (Taurolite and Diphereline) HAth CE IS KIZEIEM) - 2,259
Total revenue from contracts with customers KEREA MK EEE 2,049,803 1,176,409
Geographical markets HEFE

All revenue from contracts with customers of the Group during
each of the two years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 was
attributable to customers located in Mainland China, the place

of domicile of the Group's principle operating entities. The

Group's non-current assets are all located in Mainland China.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

0]

(iii)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

All revenue from contracts with customers of the Group during
each of the two years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 was
recognised when goods were transferred at a point in time.

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

L
(@)

BEFEEHMNNRE(E)

Weas EH1FHA(4E)

B 25 B9PE

HZE2020F %2019F12 A31 B It MEFE
BF  AEBMAKRERFAHHKEER
YRS SR o

TRETRFABSHNNEGHABEELR
SRR SRR

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
Revenue recognised that was included in RSB AEHBED
contract liabilities at the beginning of the B R
reporting period:
Sale of pharmaceuticals (note 22) BER SN (M 5E22) 8,742 89,189
Information about major customers FTEEZFEZEH
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted RERTEZB (W 10% A FEIRES
to 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: BT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Customer A BPA & 212,321
Customer B ZFB 679,377 *
Customer C ZEC * 121,675
* Less than 10% * LHN10%
Performance obligations (i) JEAIEIT

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of pharmaceuticals

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
pharmaceuticals and payment is generally due within 90 days
to 240 days from delivery, except for certain customers who
make payment in advance prior to delivery of pharmaceuticals.

ERAKBEOEENERBMMT -
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BHIBEER A BEYREER - TR — MR
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5. Other Income and Gains

H WA K s

138

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

BREMBARKEAIHTIT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBFIT
Bank interest income RITHRBHA 1,295 311
Imputed discount on deposits received (note 23(c)) Bl e M ERR(HE23()) 8,510 -
Interest income from financial assets at fair value REEBEAFEGTAEBEGNERIEE
through profit or loss (note 7) BRI SWA (H727) 615 -
Interest income from financial assets measured at REREHENAGTTENSREED
amortised cost (note 7) M BN (H7Z7) 39 -
Government grants* T4 B 447 712
Foreign exchange gains, net HINE Wz 7B = 63
Net rental income from investment property KEWMENESWAFE
(notes 7, 13) (B1z%7 - 13) 290 234
Service income ARAE M 2,434 12,992
Others Hit 39 743
13,669 15,055
* There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to the * S 4 S R T AR B Y R B A TR s B A SR 1A -
government grants.
Finance Costs 6. BIFERIA

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BRAMBRANDITMNT -

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% T ARBFIT

Interest on bank loans and other borrowings RITERRE AT R 2,833 19,542

Interest on discounted bills receivable (note 17) RO R B F B (aE17) - 392

Interest on deferred settlement of ELEEE S

trade payables JEATFIB R 2 3,937 -

Interest on lease liabilities (note 73) HEBENEWZ13) 95 92
Unwinding of discount on long-term FRERBEIR B WELR iR &

deposits received (note 23(c)) (B13£23(c) 1,932 -

8,797 20,026

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



7. Profit Before Tax
The Group's profit before tax was arrived at after charging:

Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

7. FRBIADE
AREBBBATSFE MR THIER -

Al

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR% T AREFT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEMA 1,775,977 956,562
Depreciation of items of property, M - B REEIEE
plant and equipment E " 7,804 9,213
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 13(c) 1,138 1,006
Depreciation of investment property REYEINE 12 454 114
Amortisation of intangible assets B A A 14 23 68
Research expenses X 812 1,585
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment losses U TS ERRBERE
recognised on: B/ ()
Trade receivables B S EWRIA 17 (350) 1,326
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTAFERRUA -
other receivables and other assets HMERRIER
HhEENSMERE 18 48 (54)
Short-term lease payments RHEEEN R 13(0) 433 627
Auditors’ remuneration BRI 3,100 1,850
Employee benefit expense (including EERAFAS (RIENS
directors’ remuneration as set out in note 8):  FTEEEHE) -
Wages and salaries ITENES 10,389 10,209
Welfare and other benefits BN R B A5 388 352
Equity-settled share option expense DR AEE M BRER S 26 = 19
Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEIER
— Defined contribution fund —EEHRES 491 1,410
Housing fund FEAES
— Defined contribution fund —ERERES 457 506
Total employee benefit expense RERANMFZ AR 11,725 12,496
Foreign exchanges losses/(gains), net HNERSTE, (WS ) 3% 6,058 (63)
Losses on disposal of items of property, plant HEYE - BE N
and equipment HEEEEE = 39
Write-off of inventories WipFE = 106
Write-down of inventories to net realisable FEMRZE TN FE
value 3,248 -
Interest income from financial assets at fair BEATEFABSZRNER
value through profit or loss BENBHA 5 (615) —
Interest income from financial assets REEN AT ENERE
measured at amortised cost EFEWA 5 (39) =
Net rental income from investment property &M & Y A F28 5 (290) (234)

2020 F3f EMAEZEBRARAT
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration 8 EERIETHRAEFMUREZE

and Five Highest Paid Employees aFHES
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed RIEBBHIMES LR - HERUEHE
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the 383(1)a) * (b) * (O &MIER AR (FEEEF
HKSE, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies ERDBEOE25IE - FREENETEITHA
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information BT ¢

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBFT
Fees ok 693 640
Other emoluments: Emig
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REET 2,134 2,135
Pension scheme contributions RIRFEIERK
— Defined contribution fund —ERHRES 44 38
2,871 2,813
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIYFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FRNENBIIERTESNRSAT ¢
the year were as follows:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Mr. Liu Wenfang B EE 160 160
Mr. Wang Qing padli- Pt 160 160
Mr. Lau Ying Kit IR E 160 160
Mr. Bai Zhizhong BEFREE 53 -
533 480
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FAEEREN B IEENTTE E A H 1th B

non-executive directors during the year. %o
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration 8. EERFTETBRAEFMUREEZE

and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued) EHEE(E)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive (b) MITEERFEITHAE
officer
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind Fees contributions Total
e 2 BiRg
REMEF e AR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TT AR®TR AR®T T
2020 20205
Executive directors: WITES
—Mr. Huang Xiangbin* —EE A 2,134 - a4 2,178
—Ms. Zhang Zhijie —REGLT - 160 - 160
2,134 160 44 2,338
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind Fees contributions Total
e EUR EBRe
EWEN we SIS FCE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
2019 20194
Executive directors: WITESE
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin* — BRI g 2,135 - 38 2,173
— Ms. Zhang Zhijie —REGLT - 160 - 160
2,135 160 38 2,333
* Mr. Huang Xiangbin is also the chief executive officer of the * HEWARETNBARARITEREH
Company.
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or EREEESRENE S RE A o

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration

and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)

(c) Five highest paid employees
The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director (2019: one director), details of whose remuneration
are set out above. Details of the remuneration during the year
of the remaining four (2019: four) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor a chief executive officer of the
Company as follows:

EERFETHAEFHMUREER

aSFHEE(E)

(0 EEREFEE
FR A4 RaFEERBE—RES
(2019%F : —RER) - EFHMFBEN L
X o HEpPN4 (20199 : R )W IFE FK
AAREBTRAENRSHFEENER
B ENEFBAT

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETFTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REWET 2,041 1,831
Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEIHR 86 154
Equity-settled share option expense VAT 25 45 B RO BB AR ) s2 = 87
2,127 2,072

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

FHN T TSR FESTSSH{EENABN
T

2020 2019

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T
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9. Income Tax 9.
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and BVI. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the Group's assessable profits derived from Hong Kong.

The provision for PRC CIT is based on the respective PRC CIT
rates applicable to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of Mainland China for the year. All subsidiaries domiciled
in the PRC were subject to PRC CIT at a rate of 25% during the two
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

Fris®t
RENSRSREBRMRYBORAAR
FEBBASMHSHEREBEBRRESNE
RS - BEFESHRAREREEENER
BURRIE16.5% B E RIS -

F (S SEFTIS T TV IR IR AP Bl A B BEFT
SRR A ROERFRE 5 BE AR B A b b
NEIMP RSB ERER - B1E20204F
%2019F12A31BIEMEFE - RABEFEMHY
FrE M B AR AR BB EEHHE25%%
o

FERERHIEARBHMT -

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBFIT
Current — Hong Kong BNHER— &%
Charge for the year FARZ 8,049 -
Current — Mainland China BVER — B A3t
Charge for the year FRFX 14,693 12,114
Adjustments in respect of current tax of PR FEANEATIA
previous year (4,999) 6,712
Deferred (note 15) BRIE(HTa#15) 75 579
Total tax charge for the year FRBIAR 258 17,818 19,405
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9. Income Tax (Continued) 9. FIBF(E)
A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to profit before tax at RERARAEEE N AN RAENBREEINGS
the applicable tax rates for companies within the Group to the tax FEARFRIER R EIREERANRAENHRIERY
expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: HIERRIAT ¢
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETFT
Profit before tax BRAX AT A 135,955 42,955
Tax at the respective statutory tax rates BEBEEMEFENNIE
— PRC subsidiaries at 25% — KT A RIR25%ATE 11,959 14,180
— Hong Kong subsidiary at 16.5% —BAMBARIZ16.5%TE 17,154 2,255
Differences previously not recognised BA KRR ERE (811) (5,939)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods A BT BENTEEER (10,429) (2,431)
Expenses not deductible for tax" AR X 3,132 3,159
Tax effect on deductible temporary differences not AR HB TR Z5EH
recognised T E 924 62
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous year 3% S EIEAFI 18 (4,999) 6,712
Income not subject to tax BIERTIA = (5)
Tax losses not recognised REERB ISR 888 1,412
17,818 19,405
* Expenses not deductible for tax for the years ended 31 December 2020 * HZE2020F12A31H R2019F 12 A31BIEFE
and 31 December 2019 mainly consisted of administrative expenses KA A = 2 R EEINARIFTELEMTTIK
and foreign exchange differences incurred by offshore companies. FX RERZE - ZER TR R TR

These expenses are not expected to be deductible for tax.

10. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary 10. A QA RS BEEZFEAEBLEERER
Equity Holders of the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit FREANBFEEREET2020FE12 8318 1HE
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31 EARNGEE AEG R ARRK118,137,0007T
December 2020 of RMB118,137,000 (2019: RMB23,552,000), and (20194 : AR¥23,552,00070) A R FRE 2
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,691,890,585 1TE BRI NNREF 9 E01,691,890,585/% (20194F -
(2019: 1,691,890,585) in issue during the year. 1,691,890,585% )51 &

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share HRARA R E AR TEERENTEESN SR X
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2020 and BEFEARRBRMDAFHTE - At EEH,
2019 in respect of a dilution as the exercise prices of the Company’s Z2020F 201912 A31H L EE 23 EE
outstanding share options were higher than the average market EARBNGEEH#ETHE -

prices for the Company's shares during the current and prior years.
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11. Property, plant and equipment 1. Y% - BERREE

Leasehold
improvement Construction in
Land and and office Motor  Motor progress
Buildings Machinery equipment vehicles  vehicles (“CIP") Total
HELBR HREIR
1HREF HE BAERME "E (ERIE) it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
31 December 2020 2020512R31A
Cost: WA
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R2019512A318%
202051718 176,347 1,563 10,903 18,445 31,248 238,506
Additions RE - 139 43 73 17 372
Other transfer-out Efi (1,184) (128) (1312)
Disposals e - (193) - - - (193)
At 31 December 2020 720208124318 175,163 1,509 10,946 18,518 31,237 231,373
Accumulated depreciation: ZihE:
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R019F12A318%
202051718 17,335 328 8,576 15,274 - 41513
Provided for the year (note 7) ENBENHT) 4,648 266 676 2214 - 7,804
Disposals e - (193) - - - (193)
At 31 December 2020 20208124318 21,983 401 9,252 17,488 - 49,124
Net carrying amount; REFE :
At 31 December 2019 20195124318 159,012 1,235 2,327 317 31,248 196,993
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A331A 153,180 1,108 1,694 1,030 31,237 188,249
31 December 2019 20196128318
Cost: A
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R2018512A318 R
201951718 184,704 1,531 10,432 18473 19 215,334
Additions NE 43 1 235 - 276 555
Transferred from CIP BEEHETR - 31 - - (31) -
Transferred from payments in advance gRaEEINHE - - 319 - 30,809 31,128
Transferred to investment property EAERENE (8,400) - - - - (8,400)
Disposal & - - (83) (29) - 1m)
At 31 December 2019 20195124310 176,347 1,563 10,903 18 445 31,248 238,506
Accumulated depreciation: 2iHE
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R018F12A318%
219F1A18 14,156 121 6,460 12,782 - 33,525
Transferred to investment property EATRENE (1,153) - - - - (1,153)
Provided for the year (note 7) ErEE7) 4332 201 2,188 249 - 9213
Disposal 3 - - (72) - (72)
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12331A 17,335 328 8,576 15,274 - 41513
Net carrying amount: EHEE
At 31 December 2018 #2018512A31A 170,548 1,404 3,972 5,691 194 181,809
At 31 December 2019 20195124310 159,012 1,235 2,327 3171 31,248 196,993

HZE2020F12A831H ' AEEREFEAAR
#70,296,000 7T (20194 = A R # 72,755,000
T HEFEIRIRFMERTT - (FEAREERTT
BEREER(HE24@)) °

As of 31 December 2020, the Group’s buildings with a net carrying
amount of RMB70,296,000 (2019: RMB72,755,000) were pledged
to two banks to secure the Group’s bank loans (note 24(a)).
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12. Investment Property

12. BREWE

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

Carrying amount at 1 January MM ATBRIEEE 7,133 -

Transferred from owner-occupied properties EEaERYE - 7,247

Depreciation provided for the year (note 7) FREFHRITE (H72L7) (454) (114)

Carrying amount at 31 December W12 A31BRIEREE 6,679 7,133

Notes: Bt -

(@)  Asat31 December 2020, the fair values of the investment property was (@) M2020F12A31H BEWMENRAFEMG

(b)

()

146

estimated to be approximately RMB8,292,000 (2019: RMB8,120,000).
The valuation was performed by Asia-Pacific Consulting and Appraisal
Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer. Selection
criteria of the external valuer include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The
valuation was estimated using discounted cash flow projections based
on reliable estimates of future rental income or market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, where appropriate. The
fair value measurement hierarchy of the investment property requires
certain significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

As at 31 December 2020, the investment property was leased to a third
party under operating leases.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s investment property with
a net carrying amount of RMB6,679,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB7,133,000) was pledged to obtain bank facilities granted to the
Group.
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SH4 B ANR#8,292,000 T (20194 : AR
8,120,0007T) ° (HEMBIL HEA A EERE
KEHEFABRARET o BRI ERIZ
EEEMBANH  BE BUMLREERESE
IKAE o {HEAR i 4948 B Hh 25 X2 (e (A0 R ) B0 38
L ERR KA S RAKTISHE MR EEE
RAIRE S REBUETHE - REVENLD
TEFEEREEFERETEATABRGAE
(B=8/) -

R20205F12A310 - REYFERKEEHELRHA
F—ZHE=) -

MR2020F12A31H  AEBEEEFEEAA
R #6,679,0007C (201912 A31H : AR
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13. #HE

13. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office premises and a warehouse
used in its operations. The Group entered into certain long-term
lease contracts for items of office premises. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leased land with lease periods of
50 years. Lump sum payments were made yearly upfront to acquire
certain leased office premises with lease periods of five years, and
no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of the leases
after the payments. For other leases, payments were made monthly,
quarterly and semi-annually. Leases of office premises have lease
terms between 1 and 5 years. Leases of a warehouse have lease
terms within five years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and

REBEREBRA
AEERBLEMRNAENELRENEES
# o AEBERPAEMERBFILETROHEE
BH) - BN —RUENFRAZESFERS505H
HELH - SFFABN—RENRARSEES
EENETHEHRARLENE - NRRBBEEER
RBAXNEMRESR - HtEERIEA -
FREBFEIN - BAEVMEFAENER /M E
S - EEEENEBMARFURN - —RMF -
REENFAREEUIIATE R R OBEAE
o

@ ‘AEEE
AEBENERBEENFANKRAENE

the movements during the year are as follows: BT
Office
Leasehold premises and a
land warehouse Total
WAEYE
HALH keE et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥F R AR¥TFR
As at 1 January 2019 M2019F1 751H - 2,047 2,047
Depreciation charge (note 7) WERS (M:t7) - (1,006) (1,006)
As at 31 December 2019 and R2019F12A31A K
1 January 2020 202051 R1H - 1,041 1,041
Additions NE 49,114 917 50,031
Depreciation charge (note 7) TERZ (Mi77) (82) (1,056) (1,138)
As at 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 49,032 902 49,934

The Group’s leasehold land included in right-of-use assets is
situated in Mainland China and held under long lease terms.

REEFAEREEENEE LR PE A
WRERBEIFE
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13. Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

13. HE (&)
REBERAFEBEAE)
b) HEBRE

HERBERFANKREENRESNT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREFT

Carrying amount at 1 January A1 AREREE 1,176 2,047

New leases HEE 917 -
Accretion of interest recognised during the year & RRERHIF S 3% N (H7526)

(note 6) 95 92
Payments NE (1,085) (963)
Carrying amount at 31 December P12 A31BRIBREE 1,103 1,176
Analysed into: A

Current portion MENE S 736 1,022

Non-current portion FERBNE D 367 154

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 34 HEaBENIEE DRI EREN34
to the financial statements. W o
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (0 MEZTEHIEVHEENSENT
are as follows:
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TF T ARETFTT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6) HEBENE(Hit6) 95 92
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (note 7) B EEENEFRZ (H/577) 1,138 1,006
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in ~ BEREHEENFYL

administrative expenses) (note 7) (REATTEBASE) (B3t 7) 433 627

Total amount recognised in profit or loss EERPHERNRTE 1,666 1,725
(d) The total cash outflow for leases are disclosed in note 31(c) to (d) FEBRSRIEERIBRENRTEIOR
the financial statements. = o
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13. Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

The group leases its investment property consisting of one
commercial property in Mainland China under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. The net rental

13. HE(&)
REBEABHEA

income recognised by the group during the year was RMB290,000 5) o

(2019: RMB234,000) (note 5).

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating

AEBERBCEHERHHEEREME - AL
AR R AR — AR E Y - HE
HEXHRES - WREREERATRE
Bl TR A5EEEIAFSKAFEAR
#290,0007T(2019%F : AR¥234,0007T) (FizE

BB

7202012 A31H » ZEEREFEHEB SR
BUA R EE AR R R BN A AR IR E R

leases with its tenants are as follows: J{UN
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Within one year —FR 511 511
After one year but within two years —FHREMFR 170 511
After two years but within three years MEBRB=FA - 170
681 1,192
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14. Intangible Assets

14. B EE

Software
unH
RMB’000
ARBFIT
31 December 2020 2020%12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated amortisation 7202041 41 BIRA A - 1k 25t 45
Amortisation provided during the year (note 7) FREHBE(E7) (23)
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H 22
At 31 December 2020: M2020% 124318 :
Cost BN 403
Accumulated amortisation RETHEH (381)
Net carrying amount REVHE 22
31 December 2019 2019%12A31H
At 1 January 2019: 20191 A18
Cost DN 403
Accumulated amortisation R (290)
Net carrying amount BREFE 113
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated amortisation 720194181 BIRAAN » Ik 2Tk 113
Amortisation provided during the year (note 7) FNBEBREMZ7) (68)
At 31 December 2019 72019128318 45
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020: 7201912 A31H &%2020F1 A18 -
Cost %N 403
Accumulated amortisation Rt (358)
Net carrying amount AREEE 45
15. Deferred Tax 15. IELERIE
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as follows: FRECHBEENZEBNT
2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT
At beginning of year PAFEA] 721 1,300
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FRBEBETRARELE
during the year (note 9) TIE(f7519) (75) (579)
At end of year RERXR 646 721
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15. Deferred Tax (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had accumulated tax losses
arising in Mainland China of RMB17,616,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB18,204,000) that would expire in one to five years. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets related to the PRC subsidiaries have been provided
at the enacted corporate income tax rate of 25%.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2020, no deferred tax liability has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the Directors, it is
not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future after their assessment based on factors which
included the dividend policy, the level of working capital required for
the Group’s operations and the expansion of the Group’s operations
in Mainland China. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB62,851,000 (2019: RMB25,259,000).

16. Inventories
At the end of the reporting period, all inventories represent
purchased pharmaceutical products.

At 31 December 2020, the Group's inventories with a carrying
amount of RMB241,577,000 (31 December 2019 (restated):
RMB224,916,000) were pledged to secure the Group’s other
payables as further detailed in note 23(b) to the financial statements.

15.
Hret

(a)

(b)

(@)

16. Z&

R

IESERL IR (45)

R2020F12A318 » AEBRFBEAMEER
R FIERIEAAREK17,616,0007T(2019412
A318 : AR#18,204,0007T) * KR —ERF
REHR - WEBZSERERECHEEE @ R
R EWR AT KA 88 BB m A Al K% 5
FRIEE1E -

BRAPEMNE R RMRERIREEC RS HEMD
DRSS E25% TR A

BEPBEBEMETE - BRRBIAME I FSN
AMERINTIEE SRR SEZKI10%HTE
M o 53T BE20084F1 A1 B#AER - WiEA
72007512 A31 BiE®IAH) © {8 B A B 51
B EEFE R AR DR RS - BIAER
AREMNTBINFE - KREBMABEARER10% -
Eit - ANEEEHZERF AN FME R
AIBLE2008F 1 A1 HREAER BT IR R
BERTENT -

HE2020F12A318  TERAEERFERA
A ST HY B B A B ZBE AN TE N R 60 R B B A F M
BXMNWENHERECHBERE - EERA
ERBREIE - AEBEKRENEEESKE
DAREEREATEAMHESSEEZETTGHE
RA - ZEWBRRIRA BB R KD IRE
BRF o RtA MR B R S BB A R
KRENTREERBELHARY62,851,0007T
(20194 : AR#25,259,0007T ) HE 578 AE 7 18
BfE-

SR ABEFEREMEEN SR -

7202012 A31H » ZEBENUEEREAARE

241,

577,0007C (2019412 A3 B (& &EH) : A

R#224,916,0007T) 17 E1E AR S E H b fE

3%

EWER - E—FFBER M BRI T

23(b) °
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17. Trade and Bills Receivables

17. ESRWBEREKREE

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Trade receivables B 5 FEYRIA 580,778 28,412

Impairment VERES (2,091) (2,441)
Trade receivables, net of impairment Z 5 eI IB (IR IEE) 578,687 25,971
Bills receivable R = 4,739
578,687 30,710

The Group granted credit terms ranging from 90 days to 240
days to customers after the delivery of goods, except for certain
customers who were required to make payments in advance prior
to the delivery of goods. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over the settlements of its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing. As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables of
RMB567,169,000 (31 December 2019: nil) are covered by letters of
credit.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting periods, based on the date of revenue recognised and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

BETEFPENZMNERBITEMNFIEN - A%
BELEEZNEREIOKE20RNEE -
A B S E M AR I B /Y R IR SR IB A B A SRR
BiEg - WRAEEEHH - LB EERR
BEHE - BHRBGRIERTE B - 20204
12A318 - ESEWFIEARKES67,169,0007T
(2019128318 : &) MZFHELE -

RBERRER R EER BN E F KGR
(BHIRREREE) RGO T

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥TF T ARETFTT

Within 3 months 3EAR 576,378 25,971
3 to 12 months 32128 R 2,309 -
578,687 25,971
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17. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

17.

EZREEREARERREE(E)
B SRR R R R R T

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBT T AREFT

At beginning of year REH 2,41 1,115
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment losses (note 7) GBS BEHE, /(B E) (H/77) (350) 1,326
At end of year RER 2,091 2,441

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit loss rate. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and
coverage by other forms of insurance). The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

RERE B RBEEREETRED T -
AEEHMEEERE - BEXRRERAGELUE
BRA (AT P AR R E MR ERAOH
B)mZERF D aMERI B B #EE o &5t
HRMFAEIESER EEBERNHREAH
AISNERBEEE - TR MR A IR
EIERSEE R -

A5 AR SR BI(E MR BB 5 E
WHRIBREERBRER

As at 31 December 2020 720205128318
Past due
B
1t090 more than
Current days 90 days Total
DA 1Z90X BIBIOK &t
Expected credit loss rate TEEMEEEEX 1.25% 40.12% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000)  BREIRE(AREFIT) 576,495 3,856 427 580,778
Covered by letters of credit LAMEAREE
(RMB'000) (AR®FT) (567,169) - - (567,169)
9,326 3,856 427 13,609
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) FEHEEEER(ARETIT) 117 1,547 427 2,091
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17. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued) 17. EZEWHRIEREVRREE(E)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31H
Past due
1t0 90 more than
Current days 90 days Total
ENEA 190K [V EIIPS At
Expected credit loss rate EEEEEEEX 0.96% 25.16% 100%

Gross carrying amount (RMB’000)  BREAE(ARETIT) 20,770 7,215 427 28,412
Expected credit losses TAENEEEE 199 1,815 427 2,441
As at 31 December 2020, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable R2020512A318  AEESEEFRBER
accepted by banks in Mainland China to certain import agents in O RTT A B E N T TR OMRIE - gl
order to settle other payables, with a carrying amount in aggregate EEES £ ARK110,097, 00075(2019¢12)5J

of RMB110,097,000 (31 December 2019: RMB32,437,000); 318 : ARYE32.437,0007T ) B EAtb JE (< 2008
furthermore, as at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any B4 - FA20205E12 A31 8 - ANEE T EIE A E
bills of exchange (31 December 2019: RMB37,800,000) (collectively AEZE (2019412 B31 8 : A R#37,800,000
referred to as the “Derecognised Bills”). The Derecognised Bills T (GFBI R IFFERZE |) o REBEHIR - 48 F
had a maturity term from one to three months at the end of the EREENIEE 5—E =7 o RRLEHK
reporting period. All the Derecognised Bills had been accepted by FRG 4 R = O b B A0 SR 7 TECE + FI|HE
Banks which are reputable banks in the PRC and had a maturity of A=A - BE(hE A REMBEEEE) - 4
three months at the end of the reporting period. In accordance with B ESRITIE Y - R IFTER S g AR E
the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the EELESE([Eam]) 8524 KEI
Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the Group if the DS BRI R IR AR R

PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion 3R oo EI - HDR IS l%\(ﬂ:ﬁﬁwum%ﬁ&$afijﬁﬁ
of the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially all risks IS 2 SRBE Y o 26 [ R 4R IR = g
and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has Wi ELEmMEYN RS E LR RER SR
derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and RN R RS R e R EERS - B
the associated advances on discounting. The maximum exposure to EHRA  AEEYREZZENEELEG D
loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised FAEWREA o

Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their face amounts. In the opinion of
the Directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement
in the Derecognised Bills are not significant.
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17. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued) 17. EZERRREREVRRE(E)
During the year, the Group has not recognised interest expenses FA - AEBTEBRABVAREZRON S
(2019: RMB392,000) (note 6) on discounted bills receivable. No (20194 = AR¥392,0007T) (Kizk6) - HE&ER
gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, FRk REHERISBE2ENUEEHEE - BFA
both during the year or cumulatively. The discounting has been BRIREE DML o

made evenly throughout the year.

18. Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 18. Fa{J51E - HitEWHER Hitb &&=

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARET T
(Restated)
(f=E51))

Prepayments in respect of: VATIE B B TR RRIA

— purchase of inventories -BERFE = 7,843

— consultation service fee — ARG E 814 202

- others —Hfb 756 1,718
Deposits in respect of: AT B e

— issuance of letters of credit VA 24,998 67,565

- others —EAh 5,272 4,803
Value-added tax recoverable EEdEELE 5,818 26,657
Amounts due from related parties FENR EAE T 5RIA = 447
Other receivables in respect of: IATIE B M E b U sRE

— staff advances —BI8X 359 418

— others —Hh 3,217 -

41,234 109,653
Impairment allowance AR (520) (472)
40,714 109,181
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18.

19.

156

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets
(Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of financial
assets in prepayments, other receivables and other assets are as
follows:

18.

FE{FRIE
(%)

BENFOR - B RRSEREMEETNERE
EREHEREREHNT

HitEWRERHLMEE

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBFIT

At beginning of year PAFA] 472 526
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment losses (note 7)  JFi{EES 1B,/ (F&E1) (F1517) 48 (54)
At end of year REFER 520 472

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering ECLs, which are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the Group.
The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

In determining ECLs for financial assets in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, the Directors have taken into account
the historical default experience and the future prospects of the
industries and/or considered various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information, as appropriate, in estimating the
probability of default of each of financial assets in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets occurring within their respective
loss assessment time horizon, as well as the loss upon default in
each case.

Other Financial Assets Measured at Amortised
Cost

19.

AEEFBEBEL2EZREBRCHEMABEE
AEENEREEER - RERE R FELRE
DT o BREREE R RIEL B AR R K
FERBIRARAL AR, -

EEERNHR  HRKFEREMEET S
BMEENTEREEERR EECERELED
BERRITERKAR - R/ REMATANFIEA -
HiEUE R A EET S HeMEEALS
B ERRHA R RS EA R DR AR IA RS
BERTHEZDEER - Z BN B R IR
PERIR(EE)

BRBENATENEBERHEE

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTT
Unlisted debt investments outside Hong Kong FEBEIIE L TEBIRE
— wealth management products issued by banks —RITEITEMER = 1,990

The above unlisted debt investments at 31 December 2019 were
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland China.
They were classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost
as their contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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20. Cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank 20. B2 BHESZEYURCIEFERITE

balances 553
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREBFT
Cash and bank balances B4 MIRITHE SR 143,765 224,756
Less: Pledged bank deposits* o BERRITE = (5,001)
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEZEY 143,765 219,775

* The balances as at 31 December 2019 represented bank deposits with
original maturity of less than three months when acquired which are
pledged to banks for issuance of letters of credit for the purchase of
pharmaceutical products.

The Group’s cash and bank balances at the end of the reporting
period can be further analysed as follows:

* R2019F 12 A3 AMEAKRIEIERRIBAE T
BB=EAMFREABABEEAMER TR
TEVIRITIERN ©

RBRERR - REENIRE RRITERTTE—F
DTS

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% T ARBET T

Denominated in RMB AAREEHE 102,572 211,624
Denominated in US$* AZEITEHE 37,263 12,770
Denominated in HK$* LABTTEHE 3,835 301
Denominated in C$* LAMEXRTEHE 40 -
Denominated in S$* LA DN oatE 55 61
143,765 224,756

* US$ stands for United States Dollar. HK$ stands for Hong Kong Dollar.
C$ stands for Canadian Dollar. S$ stands for Singapore Dollar

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for a period of three months
and earn interest at the respective deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

ARETREERARREMER - AW - Rig$
B OME B IR R DI ) KK E - S R AT EE
BIRE)  AEEALEBERERRINEZEEH
RITHARE S BREMER -

RITRESLRIEE BIRITFHNEAERZE T
LR - EHIFEROFRIIA=MEA - WIREA
EVTF AR ET B o SRITAER N B F R0 F
HIE A R L8k RSB RAFAVIRTT o
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21. Trade Payables
An ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the issuance date of the pharmaceuticals’
inspection report, is as follows:

21. EFENARE
R MR RN QIR IR D B S 5
NEEBEB ST -

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETFTT

(Restated)

(& 5E75))

Within three months =@EAR 700,320 294,574
Over three months =AML - 5,892
700,320 300,466

Trade payables of the Group are normally settled within 120 to 240
days (2019: 90 to 240 days).

22. Contract Liabilities
Contract liabilities consisted of short-term advances received from
customers in relation to the sale of pharmaceuticals. Changes in
contract liabilities during the year are as follows:

AEBNE SEMNFIE—KNR1208 E240H
(20194 : 90H E2408 ) W&ES ©

22. EHERE
ANBEOERINELL B TSR E BTN
HIE - FN - ANBBEEHNT -

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFIT
At the beginning of year REA 38,582 129,670
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract REFET A A LB BLEHRT
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year B iR (8,742) (89,189)
Transfer to other payables and accruals B = A < 08 2 PE ST IR (29,685) -
Net increase/(decrease) due to cash received, R WEE £ EE MM, Crd)
excluding amounts recognised as revenue TR MRERFRERE
during the year W& 27,651 (1,899)
At the end of year RER 27,806 38,582

158

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3R=RMIEE
31 December 2020 2020912 H31H

23. Other Payables and Accruals 23. HAiERIERESTRIE
2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BitEE AR¥T T ARBTT
(Restated)
(f=E51)
Current portion: BIEREL S
Payables related to: BRALATIE B M FERFUE -
Payroll and welfare payable JER T& RAEF| 1,218 605
Property, plant and equipment YE - MR NERE - 1,312
Deposits received Bldizs (a) 4,023 7,532
Consulting and professional fees BANEEE 6,433 19,122
Other tax payables EAtERFIIE 1,800 786
Import agent services HORIEARTE (b) 117,848 63,165
Interest payable JET & = 23,181
Other payables HAfE I 30R 30,624 1,173
161,946 116,876
Non-current portion: FERNERZL 5 -
Payables related to: BRALATIAR M EAFUE
Deposits received BluES (@ 93,422 -
Import agent services 3 ORIERR (b) - 130,107
93,422 130,107
255,368 246,983
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23. Other Payables and Accruals (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

()

The balances represented refundable deposits received from the
Group’s distributors according to distribution contracts in order to
guarantee their performance under distribution contracts.

The balances as at 31 December 2020 mainly represented the payables
to three (31 December 2019 (restated): two) independent third
parties, which are principally engaged in import agent services, for
their settlement of part of the purchase of pharmaceutical products on
behalf of the Group together with the service charge for the import
and logistics services. Such payables were non-interest-bearing and
secured by inventories with a carrying amount of RMB241,577,000 (31
December 2019: RMB224,916,000) (note 16).

The balances as at 31 December 2020 mainly represented the payables
related to interest-free deposits totalling RMB100 million received
from a distributor for a distribution period granted by the Group
with the latest repayment date in July 2022. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group recorded Imputed discount on deposits
of RMB8,510,000 (2019: nil) (note 5) and unwinding of discount on
deposits of RMB1,932,000 (2019: nil) (note 6).

Other than the other payables mentioned above, all other payables
of the Group are non-interest-bearing and unsecured.
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23.

H it RRIB R B Rt = RIE ()

Hiet

(a)

(b)

B st B At FE A FRIRSN

MERIE RRE AN R B AR H A EO M
RBEHESOME SRR REEZES -

R2020F 12 A3TEMEHRTEREN T =R
(2019F 12 A31H(KEF) : M%) T BN FH#
OREBREHBILE = FRFE  BERERAE
B 37 5 509> B R BR A A ROE DA Rt O R W AR 75
KRG E - BEAENFEATE - EREREE
AR #241,577,00070(2019F 12318 + AR
#224,916,00070 ) W77 E (FHFE16) VEHE IR ©

R20205 12 A3 AR 2R MEAS BRI
F— R Em B RN TR BReE
HARBI100EETEBNREMNRIE  FEER
AEA2022F 7R - HZE2020F12A31HIEF
B AEESSZeHERIEARYS510,000
JL(2019%F « ) (M3E5) MR ERIR IR & ARKE
1,932,00070(20194F &) (fiE6) -

REEH A E MRS

RIEH BT B R -
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24. Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 24. ;T BT REMMER
2020 2019
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB'000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
1k oy
(%) HHA AR®T (%) Bl ARBTT
Current; 58 :
Bank loans BAER
- Secured and quaranteed -BEARBER 3.13-6.0 2021 69,000 4856 2020 47484
- Guaranteed -BER 29 2021 8,156 -
Other borrowings AR
- Secured and guaranteed -BRAREER - - - 132 2020 140,000
Current portion of long term bank loans ~ REFTERNHEDHS
- quaranteed -BER 275 2021 830 - - -
11,986 187,434
Non-current; FEENE -
Bank loans BAER
- Guaranteed -BER 275 2022-2025 3,082 - - -
81,028 187,484
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Analysed into: DA :
Bank loans RITER
— Repayable with a repayment: —RUATEBES
Within one year or on demand R—FE RNz EK 77,986 47,484
In the second year RE_F 830 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZZEFHF
(BREEEMF) 2,212 -
81,028 47,484
Other loans HMER
— Repayable with a repayment: —RLATEREES
Within one year or on demand R—ERHIRER - 140,000
81,028 187,484
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24. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings 24. st TR EMER(E)
(Continued)
Notes: Krat -
(@) The Group's bank loans and other borrowings are secured and (a) AEEIRITERNLEAEZE AT ERE L IE
guaranteed as follows: R
(i) At 31 December 2020, the bank loan of RMB60,000,000 (31 () M2020F 128318 RITERXARHE
December 2019: RMB38,484,000) was secured by the Group's 60,000,0007C (2019612 A31H : AR
certain buildings of RMB60,152,000 (31 December 2019: 38,484,00070) B AN EEE TEFARE
RMB62,435,000) and guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin, the 60,152,000 (2019 12 A31H : AR¥E
Company and Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical Technology Co. 62,435,0007C){EHIF » WAREHFWITAE
Ltd. AABRKEERNREEFETERETA
AVESEAR o
(i) At 31 December 2020, the bank loan of RMB9,000,000 (31 (i) M2020F12A31H » BRITERARE
December 2019: RMB9,000,000) was secured by the Group's 9,000,0007 (2019412 A31H : AR
certain buildings of RMB10,144,000 (31 December 2019: 9,000,0007T) AR EE FEFARK
RMB10,320,000) and guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin. 10,144,0007C (201912 A31H : AR
10,320,0007C) VEHEHR - I RS SR AR 1E
R o
(i) At 31 December 2020, the bank loan of RMB8,156,000 (31 (i)  M2020F12A31H » RITEXARHE
December 2019: nil) was guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin and 8,156,000 C (2019412 A31H « &)@ =
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. BW R E RS ARRRBE SR AREE
NENWEER o
(iv) At 31 December 2020, the bank loan of RMB3,872,000 (31 (iv) M2020F12A31H » BRITERARE
December 2019: nil) was guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin. 3,872,0007C(20194%F12A31H : )R =
FEW SO HEERIR
(b) At 31 December 2019, other borrowings of RMB140,000,000 were (b) 201912 A31H HWEZARE
secured by 1,049,990,000 issued ordinary shares of the Company held 140,000,000 7T F Risun 3 & £ 1,049,990,000 %
by Risun and guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin. AR IEITEBIAEIEIR N B EW S L 1EE
R e
(© At 31 December 2020, except for those bank loans which were (0 F2020F12A318H & A ARE3,872,000
denominated in HK$ and US$, amounting to RMB3,872,000 and TR AR#8,156,0007T FIERTTE XD BI A 7T
RMB8, 156,000, respectively, all bank loans were denominated in RMB. RETHEIN  FIBRITEREAUAREE -
25. Share capital 25. IR
Shares i
2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFT
Authorised: iyl
10,000,000,000 (31 December 2019: 10,000,000,000) 10,000,000,0004% (2019124318 :
ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000%)
HK$0.0001 each BREE0.0001 B LM ERR 822 822
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER -
1,691,890,585 (31 December 2019: 1,691,890,585/% (2019F 12 A31H :
1,691,890,585) ordinary shares of 1,691,890,5850% )
HK$0.0001 each FREHE0.0001 TR E ik 136 136
1 62 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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26. Share Option Scheme 26. B AEETE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the development of
the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are
employees (whether full time or part time) of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”), including directors (including
independent non-executive directors) and the senior management
of the Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested Entity. The Share
Option Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders on 1
February 2016 and became effective upon the listing of the shares
of the Company and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from 1 February 2016. Please refer to
the 2016 annual report of the Company for details.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme during the year:

AR EEVEERAERT B ([ AT E)) - BEM
AAEERRELERNA AR HERERE
RER - BREEINSERS2EEREAQT]
HEWBRRSAER BB EMRENEMEE
([EEEEDNES (R 814K
AR EMB AR RIS EEEBNES(BIE
BUIERTES) RSRERE - BRETEE
72016452 A1 BEARR B R B AW A A )
EHEAEN - BRRIESITEUESERT] + BRI
2016F2 A1HEBF T FREZFEN - BHFH
1B B2 ARR2016FFf

RAFEE - BREST 8N A AT B RTT
i3

Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options
T IIITHEE BREHE
Note HKS$ per Share ‘000
BieE BRET T4

As at 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 202061 A1H K (i)

202012 A31H 0.568 15,650

Note:

(i)  The share options outstanding as at 1 January 2020 and 31 December
2020 represented 15,650,000 share options granted by the Company
on 21 September 2016 at an exercise price of HK$0.568 per share
to certain eligible participants of the Company in respect of their
contributions to the Group’s development under the Share Option
Scheme.

it -

() 202041818 K2020512 831 HARITER
EREEAQRRARARETEERSEEE A
SEERERMELEMER - R2016F9H21BRE
BE RS MR T IR 1T (B T 1%0.568/8 LA K £ % H
915,650,000/ BB A5 1% ©
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26. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 26. R AEETEI(E)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are as
follows:

31 December 2020 and 2019

HZE2020912A31H 2019512 A318 @ Mk
ITIE BRI T B RIT(EHAA T -

2020 %2019%12A31H

Number of Exercise price
options per share Exercise period
BREHE BRITEE 1T
‘000 HK$
T BT
6,260 0.568 From 21 September 2017 to 20 September 2022
201799 A21H=E202249H20H
4,695 0.568 From 21 September 2018 to 20 September 2022
20189 H21H=E202249H20H
4,695 0.568 From 21 September 2019 to 20 September 2022
20199 H21H=E202249H20H
15,650

The Company recognised a share option expense of nil during the
year (2019: RMB19,000) (note 7).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme was estimated as of the date of grant, using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) Nil
Expected volatility (%) 48.75
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.72

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.
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26.

27.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had 15,650,000 share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 15,650,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$1,565 and share premium of at least HK$8,887,635
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 15,650,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.9% of the Company’s
shares in issue as of that date.

Reserves
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 84 of the financial
statements.

(a) Share premium account
The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
constitutional documents and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium is distributable as a
dividend on the condition that the Company is able to pay its
debts when they fall due in the ordinary course of business at
the time the proposed dividend is to be paid.

(b) Contributed surplus

The contributed reserve represents the aggregate nominal

amount of the paid-up capital of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals

attributable to the owners of the Company.

26.

27.

BRETEI(E)

2020512 A318 « RIEEBRETE - K27
75 15,650,00017 i AR 1T R A BB AR o IRIBAR
AEIEATMBEARERE - BRI EMRITER
MEARE - B BUEEYNEE1T 15,650,000 0% A8 A &)
BT A I IIAR AN 1,565 8 T MR D mE =
8,887,635/ 8 T (FIBRFEHATHISZAL) ©

RUILEHBHRRAAE R - REBEBEAES - K
R BHEHB15,650,00007 HARTTEE AV FEAHE - (AR
RREREZ A HE BTN 490.9% °

(G
AEENRESBELERAFELBEFENE
HENEMEFBIEGEEREHRZT -

(a) BREER
FERARMEBREASHESARDERE -
BREEXMHEFASHEEREE - WARQ
AIRNIRNEERSREMEEREERS
BHROREBRES - ARDEE S IKAR
B o

(b) BB
ERREREANRAEA ARG ERE
EXEHRAEEE -
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27. Reserves (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
respective articles of association of subsidiaries domiciled
in Mainland China, each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to allocate 10% of its profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with PRC Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("PRC GAAP"), to the statutory surplus reserve (the “SSR"”)
until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital.

As Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, Sinco Shanghai, Chengdu
Sinco Pharmaceuticals and Qingdao Yusheng are wholly-
foreign-owned enterprises, allocation to the SSR is not
required. According to the Rules for the Implementation of
Foreign-funded Enterprise Law of the PRC and articles of
association of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, Sinco Shanghai
and Qingdao Yusheng, they are required to allocate 10%
of their profit after tax in accordance with PRC GAAP to the
statutory reserve fund (the “SRF”) until such reserve reaches
50% of their respective registered capital.

The SSR and the SRF are non-distributable except in the
event of liquidation and subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations. They can be used to offset
accumulated losses or capitalised as paid-up capital.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.5 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related options expire or be forfeited.

28. Commitments
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

27. #E(E)

()

(d)

SEERE

B4R B A BE R AL A B A & B B
AIMAMERMAR - SPHWBQFZER
BHPEARSTRAN(TFREAREHER
BINEFEAEEI10%B G EMNELER
HEHE(ETR%REE])  BEExHEEE
B HFAMEARM50% ©

AP R B - ER A B - RER
ENABENTEERDIIDBELE
WHBEBRE AT RGRHE - RIEFESH
BERFEEMARNA M) ER A EE
ERRLENERERNEBEIZMA
AIARBEHEAR G R DEE
10% R EMNEEERBHES (DEERB
A2 BEZRBEINEIMERN
50%731E e

sy
ZER

BRIBRIENEZAMTEARAEE TR
BRI  EEBBHEBIOEERBES
RRI DIk - MER AR R EERE AR
TERERRA -

B
BREREEEERBENRITEBRE
MRTE i — PRHIERIBERRM 2.5
B RARR O RER A SR & 5T R AR
At o ZE RN AR TR
ERMEER - RN AR RED B
R B E R RN o

28. &iE
AREERIRE RO BARBNT

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Contracted, but not provided for: ERENEESZTE
— Construction of a warehouse —EHREE 83,008 83,008
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29. Contingent Liabilities 29. FREE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant REMEHR - AEBBEETMENIABE -

contingent liabilities.

30. Related Party Transactions 30. BELRS
(a) During the year, the Group had the following material (a) M AEFHHEBEFETHEAZSN
transactions with related parties: e
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
Guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin FREEW AR
Interest-bearing bank loan SHRBRITER 81,028 47,484
Interest-bearing other borrowings SHEEMER = 140,000
Secured by Risun's shares over the Company VARIsunfrs A 89
RA B R VEH IR
Interest-bearing other borrowings STEEMER = 140,000
Amount due from Risun FEUTRIsunFIA = 143
Amount due from Mr. Huang Xiangbin FEU S REW ST HEFRIR = 447
- 590
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of (b) XEBEFEEEASHN
the Group
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFIT
Short-term employee benefits RHESRER 2,134 2,775
Pension scheme contributions RIREEH B 44 38
Total compensation paid to SHTFEEEBEAED
key management personnel YN 2,178 2,813

2020 5% mEEBEpRARAT 10/
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31. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows

(a)

(b)

168

Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of RMB917,000 (2019: nil) and RMB917,000 (2019: nil),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for office
premises.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, The Group’s own-
occupied properties of RMB7,247,000 were transferred to
investment properties.

31. REBEERERM:E

(a) FEHFRERSH
HZE2020F12A31HILFE - AEEEH
MAEYEHERNEAEEEREE
BEMIIRESFED R AAREI17,000
JC(2019%F : &) M AR¥917,0007C(2019
F M) e

HZE2019F 128318 ILFE - AEEEE
W ANRET7,247,0007T B BAREYE -

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RMEFEFELENEEEE
activities
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F128318LFE
Other Interest-
Lease payables bearing
liabilities and accruals bank loans
Hth e RRIE TR
HESE - RERE RITEM
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥TRT AR¥TRT AR¥TR
At 1 January 2020 7202091 818 1,176 216,453 187,484
Changes from financing cash flows BMERSREFH (1,085) (98,605) (105,982)
New lease HE 917 - -
Foreign exchange movement 4NGEE S & = = (474)
Interest expense B H 95 - -
At 31 December 2020 72020912 A31H 1,103 117,848 81,028
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31. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 31. LB REXZMET(E)
Flows (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METBHFEEMNEBRT(E)
activities (Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F 128318 IEFE
Other Interest-
Lease Interest payables bearing
liabilities payables  and accruals bank loans
HAth JEATFRIE ATE
HEAE ERFIS RIERTRUA RITER
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETT AREBTT
(Restated)
(#e=51)
At 1 January 2019 720191 A18 2,047 14,891 - 145,000
Changes from financing MERSREE
cash flows (963) (10,785) 193,272 42,484
Interest expense B H 92 19,075 - -
At 31 December 2019 M2019412 4310 1,176 23,181 193,272 187,484
(c) Total cash outflow for leases () HMERERLLRE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of REMERNNASHRSRLBRENAT -

cash flows is as follows:

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREETTT

Within operating activities REEEE 433 627
Within financing activities J%E@rﬂﬁxﬁ@] 1,085 963
1,518 1,590
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32. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

32. £ T EER

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2020

2020%12A831H

EHRERTANREHIROREELT

Financial assets SREE

Financial assets
at amortised cost
R
FTENSREE
RMB’000
AR¥T R
Trade receivables B 5 EWFIA 578,687

Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATERRUR « EfbEIEIE K
other receivables and other assets HMWEENSREE 33,326
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBE2EED 143,765
755,778

Financial liabilities ==K

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
R
STENSREE
RMB’000
AR¥ETR
Trade payables Z S EMNFIA 700,320
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals st A EAbENRIE RIEATRIBN S RIE & 252,350
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTERITREMER 81,028
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,103
1,034,801
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32. EMITEER(E)
2019%12831H

32. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued)
31 December 2019

Financial assets

TREE

Financial assets
at amortised cost

RSP

ATEMESREE

RMB’000

ARBFIT

Trade and bills receivables B SN IE R EMRE 30,710
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATERFUA - EfbEINEIEK

other receivables and other assets (restated) HivEEMSRMEE (KE) 72,761
Other financial assets measured at amortised REEN AT ENEMSREE

cost-wealth management products —BiER 1,990

Pledged deposits [mEEEEESN 5,001

Cash and cash equivalents e kBRESEY 219,755

330,217

Financial liabilities

TREE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

REEHRR

FERNSBAR

RMB'000

ARETT

Trade payables (restated) B HIENFRIB(KET]) 300,466
Financial liabilities included in other payables FTAE M B < 3R1E K fE AT B Y

and accruals (restated) eRBEEE?) 245,592

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTEIRIT R EMER 187,484

Lease Liabilities HEBE 1,176

734,718

2020 3R HERL

BEES
aE
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33. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial 33. 2@ T AAFEEATLEER
Instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably

approximate to fair values due to short term to maturity, are as

PRERE ERERE AR R A EAREER
AEBERMIAN  AREXETANKREER
DFEWT

follows:

Carrying amounts Fair value
BREE DFE
2020 2019 2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT ARBT T AREFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&e=5)) (fz=51))
Financial liabilities SRBE
Non-current portion: ERENEBS
interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER 3,042 - 2,834 -
other payables HERRIA 93,422 130,107 93,422 130,107
96,464 130,107 96,256 130,107

172

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets, other financial assets measured at amortised cost,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and
current interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liguidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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33.

34.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (Continued)

The fair values of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans, and
the non-current other payable have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-
performance risk for non-current financial liabilities as at 31
December 2020 were assessed to be insignificant.

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: nil).

The Group did not have any financial assets for which fair values are
disclosed as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: nil).

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank loans and other borrowings and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets,
trade payables and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

33.

34.

ERMTAEAFERAIVFEER(E)

ERBET BRITERRIER B EAMENRIEHA
FENABELER - GERBR IS TEEBM
TERA] AMFEIRERAKRRESRETE
B - A2020F12 8318 » KEEARSHRIIE
REBERBENTRORBRWTGEATERK -

AREFEF2020512 A31 B I EEAIR A FET
ENEHBEQ019F128318 : &) -

REEF2020F12 A31 B E T A D HEAF
ENERERE (2019128310 : &) -

MBEREEBEREGE

AEENTESRT A RRITERREM
EFAERE MR CEEY - ZFERTATR
EERAEEZEERET - AREFZEEM
TREELBE  WHLSEEREENEZEK
PR N WS - FEATAENFUR - EtEKEIE
MEMEENEREE  BHRMNRIBUAREA
Hib BN SRR FRNERMAE -

AEESBRTEEENTIERBRAMEZAR - 5
ERE  EERRERDECRR - EFSRE
RBEBEK - WEBZEFRR - ZERBRB AN
™o
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing bank
and other loans are disclosed in note 24.

The Group had no material exposure to the risk of changes in the
market interest rates as the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates were short term.

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk exposure arising
from all of its interest-bearing loans through the use of fixed rates.
In addition, the Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge
against interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s purchases of products from the overseas suppliers are
conducted in US$. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB, except for certain items of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables, interest-bearing
bank loans and trade payables, that are denominated in S$, US$, C$
and HK$.

The Group does not enter into any hedging transactions to manage
the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. Management
monitors the Group’s foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises.
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 34. BiEEREEEERBE (&)

Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5.0% change in
RMB against US$, HK$, C$ and S$. The 5.0% is the rate used when
reporting currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in the foreign currency rate. The sensitivity analysis of
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of each
reporting period has been determined based on the adjustment of
translation of the monetary assets and liabilities at the end of each
reporting period for a 5.0% change in RMB against US$, HK$, C$
and S$, respectively, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 (due to changes in the fair value of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, other receivables, interest-bearing bank loans and
trade payables denominated in US$, HK$,C$ and S$):

HNEE R (48 )

TRINTARBEZET - BT - M RIS
TLIE R EE)5.0% MBRKE © 5.0% BREREE
ERABEESRELRKBRIALE  AEEEY
SNEETE RS IR AT REZ BT - AEERESHRE
HREYRINERBEREDT - BIRIBEMA
Hin S SRETENBAT  RARKERET
PETT ~ INTT BT hNiE T i R E)5.0% D RIFHE
EHEHREEERBBEREEHAEEEE
20204 [2 20194512 A31 8 IEFE B BTE FI &Y
FEBETE(HRAZETT BT IRt
SMEMNRSRRSEEY - EHRIFTE - Hi
FENERIE ~ 5HBIRITER R ENE S FIEN AT
BEFEFTE) ¢

Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
US$/HKS$/C$/S$ (decrease) in
rate % profit after tax
ZEx/#Br,/ mx/
FETRRLEH BRB 2 A
(FF&)% #m, ()
RMB’'000
AR%T T
2020 2020%F
If RMB weakens against US$ MARBHETERE (5) (20,920)
If RMB strengthens against US$ M ARBHETHHE 5 20,920
If RMB weakens against HK$ HAREEBTRE (5) 8
If RMB strengthens against HK$ HARE S BTHE 5 (8)
If RMB weakens against C$ i AREE S Tz (E (5) =
If RMB strengthens against C$ AR S o E 5 -
If RMB weakens against S$ AR H I Tz E (5) 3
If RMB strengthens against S$ T AR 3TN T A E 5 (3)
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 34. BIEEREEEERBE (&)

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group manages this risk by requiring payment in advance from
certain customers and offering standardised credit terms to certain
customers for a credit period ranging from 0 day to 1 year. As
disclosed in note 17, the Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and senior management regularly reviews
the overdue balances.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as
at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts
for financial assets.

FEER
AEBEBBERETEPEANIEAETE
FRHEBENEEHN FORE—FMEEZAE
B o GBI EE17ATIREE - AN EEE AR K E A
FEMFIREE Z KRB R BARIES - ARREERE
E BB AR o

BE A O RFKRDE
TREMBEAREEFERREERRNERE
ZhEREREO - BRIFEAMN HKRASLLE SR
AEGHMER  TRIEZZENBMER - U
RR12ZANENFERDHNE - 228 A
BEEMAREE -

Lifetime ECLs
FENRAEERR
12-month
ECLs Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
1218 A7
=EFE
e ERER E=RE kD7 @t
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AR¥Tz AR%®Tx AR%T:R
31 December 2020 2020%12A31H
Trade receivables* B SR IE - - - 580,778 580,778
Financial assets included in FTARBRHE -
prepayments, other receivables HihEIRFIER
and other assets** HEENSREE" - 33,846 - - 33,846
Cash and cash equivalents ReLREEEY
- Not yet past due — MR 143,765 - - - 143,765
143,765 33,846 - 580,778 758,389
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 34,
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

BEEBEEEERBKGE)

EERE(E)
REABI O REFDH ()

Lifetime ECLs
FERESHEESE
12-month
ECLs Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
(PAEDEEE
EEBE
EFEE ERRER E=MER ELAE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT  AR®TT ARETT ARETT AR®TR
31 December 2019 2019F12A31H
Trade receivables* 2 5 e B - - - 28,412 28,412
Bills receivable [N ZE 4,739 - - - 4,739
Financial assets included in FFATBIFE - Rl
prepayments, other receivables TIEREMEER
and other assets** (restated) SREE™(KEY) - 73,233 - - 73,233
Other financial assets measured at 1R ARG 1)
amortised cost HieR&E 1,990 - - - 1,990
Pledged deposits [REERTITE A
— Not yet past due — R RBH 5,001 - - - 5,001
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSEY
— Not yet past due — A 219,755 - - - 219,755
231,485 73,233 - 28,412 333,130

*  For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * BAKEERSCAERENE S RIKFIEN
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is T BRDNERBHRAMEI17THEENREEE
disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements. e

> EFATENFOR - EtEMGIEREMEENE
RAETAROHERBEENBTZSEREED
EERRBNSHERARBZER - AIEEEE
ZWREIER] - BRI ZEEREENEEYL
EIRRIEFRE]

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit

BRAKBEEGRESESRUEFENEERR
EE— P BICBUR - NSRRI 74055 -

risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the
financial statements.
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, convertible bonds and its own funding sources.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

34,

BHEREERRRBE(E)

REBEE MR
AEEFEEECHRABREREENTIH AN
RIEFHEEREREEHESRREAR

AEE® B ERBEBERT SRITREMMER -
AERESREESESRRERESHEILS
BRIER T -

UTRAEEE A ERREHRERA LR
B REEIEMER -

178

2020
On Less than 1to5

demand 12 months years Total
BER  DORM2{EAR 1255 #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TRT AR®TRT AR®T:R

Interest-bearing bank and STESRITR
other borrowings HMER - 81,662 3,319 84,981
Lease liabilities HEaE - 753 392 1,145
Trade payables B S RENRIE - 700,320 - 700,320
Other payables H bR FE 158,928 - 93,422 252,350
158,928 782,735 97,133 1,038,796

2019
On Less than 1t05

demand 12 months years Total
wER  DPRI12MEA 1254 et
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AREFE

Interest-bearing bank and STESRITR
other borrowings HAER - 208,319 - 208,319
Lease liabilities HEaE - 1,048 158 1,206
Trade payables (restated) B EMFB(REY) = 300,466 = 300,466
Other payables (restated) HittpE B (EEY) 115,485 130,107 - 245,592
115,485 639,940 158 755,583
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 34. BiEEREEEERBE (&)

Policies (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or raise new capital from its investors. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing financial
risk during the year.

The Group is currently funding its capital expenditure through
internal generated funds from its operations, and proceeds from
the new bank and other borrowings. The Group monitors capital
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by equity plus net
debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
trade payables, other payables and accruals, tax payable, and lease
liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents and time deposits. Equity
includes equity attributable to the owners of the parent and non-
controlling interests. The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

BEXEE
AEBEAEENTIRARRERASEGRE
BERBRERERRROBARLE  UXRFE
EBREERARREE -

REFREHERRNE B EIR L EARRBI HH
TEHARE - RERAABELARE  AKEHAE
AERRBREFAHMEREEEETES - F
A BERMBERNBR - BERSGBEW R

%4
= °

REEREEBELEMSAEESIANFTIER
1T REMERASFIRBNEEARRY - AEE
MABELR(BEFEREENAEFE) BT
BR - BEFEEHRRITEEMER B
FEATRRIR - BAR N FIR BT RIE - BATRIA

S ERSRREA ARG S RIS - W
EHRNBELRNT

2020 2019

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREFTT

(Restated)

(& 5E7))

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTERITREMER 81,028 187,484
Trade payables Z S EMNFHIA 700,320 300,466
Other payables and accruals b S /0B M BT OB 255,368 246,983
Tax payable FER IR 21,999 11,361
Lease liabilities HERE 1,103 1,176
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BB RReFEEY (143,765) (219,755)
Less: Pledged bank balances - BEIRIRTTAEER = (5,001)
Net debt BEFE 916,053 522,714
Equity g 164,429 46,292
Equity and net debt EmhBEFE 1,080,482 569,006
Gearing ratio BELE 84.8% 91.9%
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35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  35. & BB 4k &
Information about the statement of financial position of the BEAQARNRRERARNIABZARKEROT -
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R E AR E 65,603 4,826
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 65,603 4,826
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments TR A 219 344
Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIE ¢ 102,669 177,653
Cash and cash equivalents HERFELEED 127 265
Total current assets REEEAE 103,015 178,262
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBRE
Other payables and accruals H b fE (T RR0IE & JEETRIE - 23,326
Amounts due to a subsidiary FERT—FEKT B A B FIE 159,900 4,520
Other borrowing EMER - 140,000
Total current liabilities REEEARE 159,900 167,846
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE, (&) FHE (56,885) 10,416
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRBAER 8,718 15,242
Net assets EEZRE 8,718 15,242
EQUITY ER
Issued capital 2RI 136 136
Reserves (note) [ER ) 8,582 15,106
Total equity S HATER 8,718 15,242
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35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 35. X T B iR & (&)
(Continued)

Note: Kzt -
The movements in the Company’s reserves are as follows: RARGEEEENT -
Share Share
premium option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
& 10 @ ERR IEARAE RS 25tEE “aEt
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFT AREBFIT AREBFIT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 201991 81H 289,113 2,887 (32,099) 259,901
Equity-settled share option AR AR H OB RR R 2k
arrangements (note 26) (K1:t26) - 19 - 19
Loss and total comprehensive loss FABBREEBEEE
for the year - - (244,814) (244,814)
At 31 December 2019 2019 12AH31H 289,113 2,906 (276,913) 15,106
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 12 A31H &
1 January 2020 202091 A1H 289,113 2,906 (276,913) 15,106
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRAEIE N
for the year 2 HEEARE - - (6,524) (6,524)
At 31 December 2020 2020912 A31H 289,113 2,906 (283,437) 8,582
36. Approval of the Financial Statements 36. #t/ERMBERE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by MBHACN20214F3 A3 BEES S HERER
the board of directors on 31 March 2021. T o
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Definitions

" affiliate”
[BEEBAT

"AGM"
[RRBEFAE]

"Articles” or “Articles of Association”
[4BA k[ 484 =240 A) |

“Board”
(=

"Cayman Companies Law”

[REESREE]

“China” or “the PRC"
[FEE ]

“Company” or “our Company” or “the
Company”

[ARAE

“Director(s)”

(%]

[ moou

"Group”, “our Group”, “the Group”,

" non

we”, "us”, or “our”

[ARSE ] - [P Ikl FAfIe )

"HKS"
(7]

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under direct
or indirect common control with such specified person
BESHEEGIETE AT A B E R EEIE SR TE A T EESEES HA
I EATE M A LT

annual general meeting of the company

ARBBRBFAE

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time),
conditionally adopted on 1 February 2016
RRAR20165F2 A1 BB R ERMEVE B Z T2 A (B EHERT)

the board of Directors
£5g

the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961), as amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
FEMEEMIE22E (1961 F E35EM) A RLVE(2013FEFTM) KL TRKRIEET
Sk oS A Bt 5 g2k

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan
i ARSAE - ARET T OEES  APISHTRERAS

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (87125 2 2247 f5 FBR /2 7)), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 16 March
2015
BRRE SRR BR AT - R2015F3 16 AL A S ST M I REREBR
NG

the director(s) of the Company
NRARES

our Company and our subsidiaries and, in respect of the period before we became
the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the businesses operated by such
subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)
RRAF RFAIRIE R FIA R (SRR PR RIRE W E QR 2 ZER D A ATE B
=) AERM B R RIS AT S GRIERME ) &2 E

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BREEEHN
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Definitions &%

"HKSE"
[ B EHEP

“Hong Kong”
[&% ]

“Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar”
[EERAFERD K]

“"Human Albumin Solution”

[AMAEREHR]

"

“Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences
[ B8RP

“Listing Rules”

[ s8]
“Main Board”
E
“"MPCM”

[&8 - HENMREEE]

“Mr. Huang”
[EEAE

“Octapharma”

[R5 45335 |
"PRC"
[

"Prospectus”

[EE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEMERXHBER AR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEIFEBRRITTHE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

BRRRBHFELBRAT

refers to Octapharma’s human albumin solution 20% (containing 200 grammes
of total protein per litre) and human albumin solution 25% (containing 250
grammes of total protein per litre). The term Human Albumin Solution refers to
both products or either one of them as the context requires

AR BEHEEN20% AMNAERIFR(EHE#EH2007%) %R25% AMA
EHHIR(BAESHED2507%) - AMBERFIIREZTMEE M E T —1&
(BFxE)

the Institute of Chinese Materia Medica, China Academy of Chinese Medical
Sciences (1 B A B8 L 2P0 Fp 2R 9T A
rp B AR B R B R B SR T

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE, as amended or
supplemented from time to time

BABZ RS LTRA - BARERT ST

Main Board of the HKSE
BB PTER

refers to marketing, promotion and channel management for the sale and
promotion of pharmaceutical products for pharmaceutical manufacturers
R EE R ERETTHEN HERREEE

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (& #£#2), our Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive
Officer and one of our controlling shareholders

|EWSEE - BIFNER - ITESF - (TBEREERIERIRR 2 —

Octapharma AG, a corporation limited by shares incorporated in the Swiss
Confederation

Octapharma AG * I InTE F A LA D AR A E

the People’s Republic of China
i A RAME

the prospectus issued by the Company dated 29 February 2016
RATM201652 A29 R FIZEHBRE
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Definitions 3%

“Reporting Period”
[¥REH]

“Risun”
[Risun ]

"RMB”
AR

“SFO”

[#& % MR R

“Share(s)"”
[ A& ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[A& =]

“Share Option Scheme”

Fal e Rl

the financial year ended 31 December 2020
BZE2020F12 A3 1B LG E

Risun Investments Limited, a limited company incorporated under the laws of the
British Virgin Islands on 16 January 2015, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Mr. Huang Xiangbin

Risun Investments Limited * 7201591 8 16 B iR G I B 4 F R B B A @A Sz
WERAR - RESWEELERENNE AT

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of China
ARETT  FEDEEEHS

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time
BEREDBSNEERLRAEGD - K IRERTRMET

ordinary share(s) in the capital of the Company with nominal value of HK$0.0001
each
RA R GAKEEO0.0001E TTH) E AR

holder(s) of Shares
[SGESZ=DN

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on 1 February
2016, the principal terms of which are summarised in “Statutory and General
Information — D. Other Information — 1 Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VIl to
the Prospectus

RAFRR2016F2 A1 BB GRAHRGHBRE 8 KX 2R BRENEL
DEE R —RRER —D HEMER — 1At 2) 1t

“U.S. dollars” or “US$”

U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

= X ENBREBRBEEEEH

s

In this Annual Report, the terms “associate,”, “close associate,

"o

connected

a won

person,” “connected transaction,” “controlling shareholder,” “core
connected person,” “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have
the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the context

otherwise requires.

The English translation of the PRC entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities,
requlations in Chinese are translations of the Chinese names. To the
extent there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of the PRC
entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities, requlations and their English
translations, the Chinese names shall prevail.
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HEARFHT  BEXEZEIEN)  [HEA) [RE
BEA [FEAL] [FEXS] [FREKE] -
[BOBEAL ) [MERRIREZREIAF LT
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Pharmaceutical

www.sinco-pharm.com
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